
CITY COUNCIL BUSINESS MEETING AGENDA 

1705  MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL 

JULY 15, 2013 

6:30 P.M. 
                                                                              

 1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 2.  ROLL CALL / INVOCATION  

 

 3.  APPROVE MINUTES:    Council meeting minutes / July 1, 2013     

                                                   Council Work Session meeting minutes / July 8, 2013                                            

                                                   Council Strategic Plan meeting minutes / July 8, 2013     

 

ANNOUNCEMENT:         Beautification Award 

 

PRESENTATION:             Coach Vickery 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS:                                       

 

1. Rezoning:     John & Deborah Kim   

         Location:       Southwest of the intersection of Pollard Road and County Road 64 

         Present Zoning:  R-2, Medium Density Single Family Residential District  

       Requested Zoning: B-3, Professional Business District  

            Recommendation: Unanimous Unfavorable 

 

     2.    Rezoning:     Interstate-Baldwin Investment, LLC   

         Location:       Northwest of the intersection of   

     TimberCreek Subdivision and Interstate 10 

            Present Zoning:  B-2, General Business District  

       Requested Zoning: R-6 (G), Garden or Patio Homes  

            Recommendation: Unanimous Favorable  

                                                               

4. REPORT STANDING COMMITTEES: 

 

   A. FINANCE COMMITTEE / Conaway  

       Review minutes / July 8
th
  

1. Ordinances: 

a.)  ATRIP / Lake Forest Phase II / Ordinance 2013-41 

              b.)  U.S. 98 (SR 42) Service Road Extension in Baldwin County Agreement 

Between the City, ALDOT and Two Step Partners, LLC / Ordinance 2013-42  

              c.)  Appropriation of Funds:  S.E.E.D.S.  / Ordinance 2013-44 

 

       2.)  Resolutions: 

             a.)  ATRIP / Resurfacing 1.895 Miles on Bay View Drive and Ridgewood Drive from 

                   Rolling Hill Drive to Dunbar Loop / Resolution 2013-38 

            b.)  Credit Card Issuance for Procurement / Resolution 2013-39  

         

       3.)  Motions: 

       1.  To authorize  the application for the City of Daphne Village Point-Bay Front Invasive Species  

            Grant through Federal and State Agencies. 

 

 2. To authorize  the application for the Restoration of the Yancey Branch – Abandoned Dirt Pit  through  

     Federal and State Agencies.  

 
     4.  Financial Reports: 

Treasurers Report /  June 30, 2013 / No report.  Not reconciled 

Sales Tax, /  May 31, 2013 / No report.  Not reconciled 

Lodging Tax, May 31, 2013 / No report.  Not reconciled 

1



 

COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                             JULY 15, 2013                               PAGE   2 

 
 

  B.  BUILDINGS & PROPERTY  COMMITTEE-  Davis          

        Review minute / July 3
rd

  

    

 C.   PUBLIC SAFETY -  Rudicell        

 D.  CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  - Fry    

        Review minutes / July 10
th
  

        Ordinances on the agenda: 

        a.)  Public Indecency Ordinance / 2
nd

 Read 

        b.) Community Standards Ordinance / 2
nd

 Read  

        c.) Amending Chapter 1 of the Employee Handbook / Privately Owned Firearms & Ammunition 

             In the Work Place  /  1
st
 Read  

   

E.  PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY  -  LeJeune       

 

 

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  
   A.  Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones   

   B.  Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway 

         Review minutes / June 26
th
  

 

  C.  Industrial Development Board – Davis 

       Review minutes / June 24
th
  

        MOTION: Re-appoint Dan Romanchuk / Term 2012-2018 and Denis Kearney / Term 2011-2017 

 

  D.  Library Board  - Lake 

  E.  Planning Commission – Scott   

       Review minutes / May 23
rd

  

       Review Special Called meeting minutes and report / June 11
th
   

       Report for the June 11
th
 and June 27

th
 Planning Commission meeting 

       Set a Public Hearing date for August 19, 2013 and approve advertising to consider: 

a.)  Amendments to the Land Use & Development Ordinance: 

1.)  Repeal Article 11-14(h) Common Open Space Provisions in its entirety and Replace with   

      Article 11-14(h) Open Space and Recreation Provisions 

2.) Amend Article 8 Definition of Terms to Add “No Clear Zone” 

3.) Amend Articles 8 & 35 Definition of Terms and Table of Permitted Uses as related to the     

     Community Standards Ordinance 2013-38 

b.) Public Notice of Sign Committee Meetings through August 13
th
  

      

  F.  Recreation Board  -  LeJeune   

       Review minutes / May 15
th
  

         

  G. Utility Board - Fry   

       Review minutes / April 24
th
  

 

6.  REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

     A.  Mayors Report 

          MOTION:  Authorize the Mayor to enter into a contract with ALDOT for mowing the right-of-ways  

                             at I-10 and State Route 181  

 

    B.  City Attorney’s Report 

   C.   Department Head Comments 

         City Clerk Report:   

 

2



 

COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                             JULY 15, 2013                               PAGE   3 

 

 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:   

   

8. RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 
   

  RESOLUTIONS: 

 

a.)   Resurfacing 1.895 Miles on Bayview Drive and Ridgewood Drive 

        from Rolling Hill Drive to Dunbar Loop . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2013-38 

 

b.)   Authorizing Issuance of a Credit Card for Procurement. . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2013-39 

 

 

 ORDINANCES:         

 

        2
ND

  READ      

a.)  An Ordinance Regulating Public Indecency. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2013-31 

 

b.)  Rezone: Earth Inc. / R-3 to R-6 (G). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. /Ordinance 2013-37 

 

c.) Regulating Community Standards. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2013-38 

 

 

        1
ST

 READ        

a.)   Rezone: John & Deborah Kim / Property located Southwest 

        of the Intersection of Pollard Road & County Road 64. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. ./Ordinance 2013-39 

 

b.)   Rezone:  Interstate-Baldwin Investment, LLC / 

        Property Located Northwest of the Intersection of TimberCreek 

        Subdivision and Interstate 10. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  /Ordinance 2013-40 

 

c.)    Resurfacing Bayview Drive and Ridgewood Drive from Rolling 

        Hill Drive to Dunbar Loop (Lake Forest Phase III). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2013-41 

 

d.)   U.S. 98 (SR42) Service Road Extension in Baldwin County  

        Agreement for Preliminary Engineering, ROW Acquisition, 

        Utilities and Construction. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2013-42 

 

e.)    Amending Chapter 1 of the Employees Handbook:  Privately-Owned  

        Firearms and Ammunition in the Workplace  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2013-43 

 

f.)    Appropriation of Funds:  S.E.E.D.S  
        (Supporting Educational Enrichment in Daphne School’s) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2013-44 

 

9.    COUNCIL COMMENTS        

10.  ADJOURN 

3



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

CITY COUNCIL: 

 

COUNCILWOMAN CONAWAY    PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN RUDICELL     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN LAKE     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN FRY      PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN LEJEUNE     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN DAVIS     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

MAYOR: 

MAYOR HAYGOOD     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

CITY CLERK: 

REBECCA HAYES      PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 

JAY ROSS       PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

4



JULY 1, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

 

P
ag

e1
 

1.    CALL TO ORDER:  

Council President Scott called the meeting to order at 6:33 p.m.       

 

2.    ROLL CALL/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGAINCE: 

Pastor Jerry Hewett, Bay Community Church gave the invocation. 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:    

Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell, John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron Scott; Robin LeJeune; Joe Davis, 

III. 

 

Also present:  Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Sarah Toulson, Assistant City Clerk; Jay Ross, City 

Attorney; David Carpenter, Police Chief; James White, Fire Chief; Tonja Young, Library 

Director; Vickie Hinman, HR Director; Richard Merchant, Building Official; Margaret Thigpen, 

Civic Center Director; David McKelroy, Recreation Director; Richard Johnson, Public Works 

Director; Michael Hoyt, Municipal Judge Adrienne; Jones, Director of Community 

Development; Suzanne Henson, Senior Accountant; Bob Segalla, Utility Board; Al Guarisco, 

Village Point Foundation. 

Absent:  Mayor Haygood. 

 

3.    APPROVE MINUTES: 

June 17, 2013 Council meeting minutes 

June 24, 2013 Strategic Plan meeting minutes  

 

Mr. Ross stated that Ordinance 2013-27 has been amended to correct a scriveners error, putting 

the zoning in the right place in the ordinance. 

 

Councilman Fry asked that Mrs. Ann Strickland’s statement under public participation be added 

to the minutes verbatim. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to adopt the June 17, 2013 meeting minutes as 

amended to include Mrs. Ann Strickland’s statement verbatim under public participation. 

Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION  CARRIED 

 

 

There were no corrections to the June 24, 2013 Strategic Plan meeting minutes, and the 

minutes stand approved as written. 

 

 

 

5



JULY 1, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

 

P
ag

e2
 

 

4.    REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

      A.   FINANCE COMMITTEE – Conaway 

The next meeting will be July 8
th

 at 4:00 p.m. 

 

      B.   BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE -  Davis 

The minutes for the June 3
rd

 meeting are in the packet.  The committee met today and those 

minutes will be in the next packet. 

 

      C.   PUBLIC SAFETY  COMMITTEE – Rudicell  

The next meeting will be July 10
th

 at 4:30 p.m. 

 

      D.   CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE – Fry 

The next meeting will be July 10
th

 after the Public Safety meeting.  Mr. Fry said that he will not 

be at that meeting, and asked Mr. Rudicell to chair the meeting. 

 

      E.   PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE – LeJeune 

The June 17
th

 minutes are in the packet.  The next meeting will be July 15
th

 at 5:00 p.m. 

 

5.    REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMITTSIONS: 

      A.   Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones 

Mr. Robison said there will not be a meeting in July. 

 

      B.   Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway 

The plaque for the fountain is in place recognizing those that were responsible for the statue and 

fountain. The next meeting will be July 24
th

 at 5:30 p.m. 

 

      C.   Industrial Development Board – Davis 

The board met June 24
th

, and the minutes will be in the next packet.  They reviewed the 

incorporation papers and by-laws.  They were dated June 24, 1974, they are 39 years old.  They 

are reviewing them to update to bring the by-laws up to date. 

 

      D.   Library Board – Lake 

Mrs. Young stated there will not be a meeting in July or August.  They have a Summer Reading 

program for Adults in July.  They will meet on Wednesdays and Saturdays.  The theme for 

Saturday morning will be Road Trip on Route 66. 

 

      E.   Planning Commission – Scott 

The Planning Commission met last Thursday, and the minutes will be in the packet after 

approval.  Mr. Scott mentioned that at the last council meeting the credentials of the Planning 

Commission were called into question.  He said that all the members have college degrees, and 

all but one have gone through the certification training.  The Planning Commission meeting is 

6



JULY 1, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

 

P
ag

e3
 

the fourth Thursday of the month, and Site Preview is the Wednesday before the Planning 

Commission meeting. 

 

      F.   Recreation Board – LeJeune 

The next meeting will be July 10
th

 at 6:30 p.m. 

 

      G.   Utility Board – Fry 

The board met last week.  The next meeting will be July 31
st
 5:00 p.m. in the council chambers. 

 

 

6.    REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

       A.  Mayor’s Report 

           a.)  Paris Air Show 

Mayor Haygood said there was a Baldwin County Delegation present, and there were about 100 

from Alabama that attended.  They attended production meetings, and 20 meetings with 

suppliers.  The time frame will be slower in understanding how they will serve the air business.  

He said it was very productive, and he made a lot of contacts which will be of benefit down the 

road. 

 

      B.  City Attorney’s Report 

Mr. Ross asked council to adjourn into Executive Session at the end of the meeting to discuss 

pending litigation. 

 

     C.   Department Head Comments 

Richard Johnson – Public Works Director – thanked council for passing the capital budget 

where they were able to purchase a new knuckleboom truck.  The truck is outside for council and 

citizens to view.  He said that the pedestrian bridge at Gator Alley will be dedicated July 10
th

 at 

10:00 a.m., and Hampton Inn will provide treats. 

 

 Michael Hoyt – Municipal Judge – thanked council and the Mayor for the new magistrates 

position.  They have someone they will be making an offer to shortly. 

 

David McKelroy – Recreation Director – Thursday’s July 4
th

 celebration will kickoff 5:00 p.m. 

– 8:00 p.m. with inflatable slides, hot dogs, lemonade and snow cones will be available.  The 

following weekend will be the Jubilee 7 on 7 tournament with 28 teams from outside the area 

which will be bringing 30 players with each team. 

 

James White – Fire Chief – cautioned even though it is illegal to shoot fireworks inside the city 

limits, if citizens choose to do it anyway to use caution. 

 

City Clerk Report – Rebecca Hayes –  
No report. 

7



JULY 1, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

 

P
ag

e4
 

 

7.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Ms. Sarah Harris – Daphne -  spoke of her concern of the access point for the development on 

Tallent Lane saying it will destroy the community. 

 

 

8.    RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

         

       RESOLUTIONS: 
a.)   Establishment of “On Call” and Project Engineering Services. . . . . . ./Resolution 2013-36 

b.)   Confiscated Funds Signatories . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2013-37 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to waive the reading of Resolutions 2013-36 and 

2013-37.  Seconded by Councilman Rudicell. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR         NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to adopt resolutions 2013-36 and 2013-37.  

Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

       ORDINANCES: 

        2
ND

  READ 

a.)   Appropriation of Funds: Daphne High School Band. . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2013-33 

 

b.)    Appropriation of Funds: 2012 Assistance to  

        Firefighters Grant . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2013-34 

 

c.)    Fiscal 2013 Amended Budget: New Personnel and Personnel 

         Restructuring . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2013-35 

 

d.)     Bicyclist Safety. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2013-36 

 

       1
ST

 READ 

e.)  An Ordinance Regulating Public Indecency. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2013-31 

8



JULY 1, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

 

P
ag

e5
 

f.)  Rezone: Earth Inc. / R-3 to R-6 (G) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2013-37 

g.)  Regulating Community Standards. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2013-38 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Fry to waive the reading of Ordinance 2013-33.  Seconded by 

Councilman Davis. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adopt Ordinance 2013-33.  Seconded by Councilman 

Davis. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR           NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Fry to waive the reading of Ordinance 2013-34.  Seconded by 

Councilman Lake. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Fry to adopt Ordinance 2013-34.  Seconded by Councilman 

Rudicell. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to waive the reading of Ordinance 2013-35.  

Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to adopt Ordinance 2013-35.  Seconded by Councilman 

Fry. 

 

AYE    Conaway, Rudicell, Fry, LeJeune, Davis, Scott                 NAY    Lake 

 

                                                                 MOTION CARRIED 
 

9



JULY 1, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

 

P
ag

e6
 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to waive the reading of Ordinance 2013-36.  Seconded by 

Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

AYE   ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to adopt Ordinance 2013-36.  Seconded by 

Councilman Lake. 

 

AYE    ALL FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

ORDINANCES 2013-31, 2013-37 and 2013-38  ARE  1
ST

 READ. 

 

 

9.    COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

Councilwoman Conaway reminded everyone to keep in mind that July 4
th

 represents freedom 

and independence. 

 

Councilman Lake said that at the meeting of the Park City Water Board they spoke of their 

concern about the traffic on Tallent Lane.  He is concerned with the added traffic that the 

proposed subdivision will bring to the community, and said that they need to look at the long 

term and protect all in the community. 

 

Councilman Fry wished everyone a good 4
th

 of July.  He invited all to come out to Trione Sports 

Complex and celebrate freedom and way of life.  He thanked the Public Works department for 

all the flags erected around town. 

 

Councilman LeJeune thanked the Mayor and Public Works for the flags, and he is looking 

forward to the celebration at Trione. 

 

Councilman Davis said everyone should celebrate what the 4
th

 really means, and teach small 

children the history of the 4
th

.  He thanked the Scout leaders, and thanked the Beautification 

Committee for the flags.  He is looking forward to the 4
th

.  

 

Council President Scott recognized the Boy Scouts that were in the audience working on their 

citizenship badge.  He thanked the Scout leaders for a good job.  He also thanked the 

Beautification Committee for the flags. He said they will be adding flags year by year as they can 

afford.   

 

 

10



JULY 1, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

 

P
ag

e7
 

Mayor Haygood  mentioned to Mr. Lake that they are tracking the R-6(g), and they may need to 

add another zone.  He said it was good to see Mayor Small in the audience 

 

 

10.   ADJOURN: 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adjourn into Executive Session to discuss pending 

litigation.  Seconded by Councilman Rudicell. 

Mr. Ross, City Attorney, certified the foregoing mentioned reason for going into Executive 

Session is appropriate according to the Open Meetings Act.  The session will take 15 

minutes. 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

Conaway  Aye    LeJeune  Aye 

Rudicell  Aye    Davis   Aye 

Lake   Aye    Scott   Aye 

Fry   Aye 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS, THE MEETING ADJOURNED  

AT 7:15 P.M. 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,       

         

                                                     

__________________________________    

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk       

 

        Certification of Presiding Officer,    

 

 

        _____________________________ 

        Ron Scott, Council President      

11



JULY 8, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e1
 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell; John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron 

Scott; Robin LeJeune; Joe Davis. 

  

Also present: Mayor Dane Haygood; Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Jay Ross, City Attorney. 

 

Council President Scott called the meeting to order at 6:35 p.m. 

 

 

1. DAVID TARWATER / PRESENTATION FOR S.E.E.D.S.: 

Mr. Tarwater gave statistics on money spent of each student in Alabama and Baldwin County ranks 

at the bottom of the list.  S.E.E.D.S. is asking that the city partner with them in growing world class 

schools in Daphne.  They asked council for consideration of their proposal: 

1. Establishment of foreign language studies for K-6  ($34,000) 

2. Hobson’s Naviance College & Career-rediness platform    ($13,000) 

3. 135 iPads for Grade K-6          ($52,000) 

 

2. VILLAGE POINT FOUNDATION / MRS. SELENA VAUGHN 

Mrs. Vaughn gave a synopsis of how the Bayfront property was purchased, and the citizen help that 

was involved.  She is concerned about talk of repurposing the lodging tax funds.  She mentioned the 

purposed behind the lodging tax was to purchase and maintain Bayfront property.  She wondered if 

council was finished with the Bayfront.  

 

Council wanted to know how much money the Village Point Foundation has brought in for the 

Bayfront property. 

 

3. CRITERIA FOR COMMUNITY CONTRIBUTIONS 

Council discussed establishing a total amount to fund community contributions by setting aside a 

percentage of revenues, and then having a maximum amount to give each request. 

 

They discussed excluding education, and limiting what they do for the schools.  They discussed 

having some guidelines.   

 

Council feels that if the community knows the rules they will play by them. 

 

Mayor Haygood said that he requested that submissions for funding be made early so they could be 

included in the budget. 

 

Council asked Mayor Haygood to send them all the requests that he has received. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12



JULY 8, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e2
 

 

4.  RULES OF PROCEDURE 

Councilman LeJeune said that if it was not in the ordinance already or covered by state code or 

Roberts Rules of Order he wanted to include that an item can be put on the agenda if requested by 

two (2) councilmembers. 

 

Mr. Ross asked that they state which edition of Roberts Rules of Order they wish to use. 

 

Mayor Haygood asked council to consider making the recording of council meetings available for 

the public to review. 

 

 

5. WHATEVER ELSE IS DEEMED NECESSARY 

a.)  Sign Committee  

Mayor Haygood said the committee has met and decided to meet every Tuesday 4:30 p.m. to 6:30 

p.m.  They are concerned that they might not be finished by August 13
th

, and wanted to know if 

council would consider extending the time period to the end of August. 

 

Council said they had no problem with extending the time, but does not want to extend the time for 

more than 30 days.  There is a timeline involved so that council will not have to renew the 

promotional advertising motion.  

 

The recommendation from the committee will come back to council, and then be forwarded to the 

Planning Commission, and then back to council.   

 

Mayor Haygood said that the #4 item on the Action Item List can be crossed off as accomplished. 

 

6.  ADJOURN 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 8:15 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,       

                                                     

                               

___________________________                                                                                        

Rebecca A. Hayes,                                                                     

City Clerk                                                                                                                                             

       Certification of Presiding Officer:   

 

 

       ________________________________      

      Ron Scott,     

      Council President   

13



STRATEGIC PLAN MEETING 

JULY 8, 2013 

1705 MAIN STREET 

4:30 P.M. 

 

 

PRESENT:  Councilwoman Conaway; Councilman Rudicell; Councilman Lake; Councilman 

Fry; Council President Scott; Councilman LeJeune; Councilman Davis; Mayor Haygood; 

Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Adrienne Jones, Community Development Director; David 

Carpenter, Police Chief; jane Ellis, Mayor’s Assistant; Sarah Toulman Assistant City Clerk; 

Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director; Richard Johnson, Public Works Director. 

 

1. PUB LIC PARTICIPATION 

No one spoke. 

 

2. VISION STATEMENT 

Council agreed to use as a base the following for the Vision Statement: 

“Daphne, a family oriented city, is committed to a high quality of life, a strong sense of 

community and the fostering of a positive environment for education, cultural and business 

growth.” 

Council can tweak this phrase, and submit to the City Clerk. 

 

HOMEWORK 

a.)  Work on the Vision Statement 

b.) Go from Vision Statement to Mission Statement (Think about a mission statement) 

c.) Start thinking of goals for the city (look over goals from the IDB Strategic Plan) 

Any department that does not have a Vision Statement should prepare one, and can revise the 

one they have. 

Meeting adjourned at 6:15 p.m.  

The next meeting in two weeks, July 22
nd

. 

14



 

PUBLIC HEARING  

FOR COUNCIL MEETING 

JULY 15, 2013 

 

TO CONSIDER: 

 

1. 

 

  Rezoning:     John & Deborah Kim 

   

        Location:       Southwest of the intersection of  

      Pollard Road and County Road 64 

 

        Present Zoning:  R-2, Medium Density Single 

Family Residential District  

 

   Requested Zoning: B-3, Professional Business District  

 

        Recommendation: Unanimous Unfavorable  

 

 

2. 
         

        Rezoning:     Interstate-Baldwin Investment, LLC 

   

        Location:       Northwest of the intersection of   

      TimberCreek Subdivision and Interstate 10 

 

        Present Zoning:  B-2, General Business District  

 

   Requested Zoning: R-6 (G), Garden or Patio Homes  

 

        Recommendation: Unanimous Favorable  

15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



ORDINANCE NO. 2013 –  

 

 

Ordinance to Rezone Property Located Southwest of the Intersection of Pollard 

Road and County Road 64 

John & Deborah Kim 
 

 WHEREAS, the owners of certain real property within the City of Daphne, Alabama, have 

requested that said property be rezoned from R-2, Medium Density Single Family Residential District to 

B-3, Professional Business District, said property is located Southwest of the intersection of Pollard Road 

and County Road 64 being more particularly described as follows:  

 

Legal Description: 

 
COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 1 OF THE RESUBDIVISION OF 

LOTS 1, 2, AND 3 AUDUBON PARK SUBDIVISION AS RECORDED ON SLIDE NO. 2040-B IN 

THE OFFICE OF THE JUDGE OF PROBATE OF BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA; THENCE 

RUN NORTH 00-DEGREES 30-MINUTES 41-SECONDS EAST ALONG THE WEST LINE OF 

SAID LOT 1 AND THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF POLLARD ROAD (80' RIGHT-OF-

WAY) A DISTANCE OF 221.48 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 89-DEGREES 29-MINUTES 37-

SECONDS WEST, 79.86 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 

POLLARD ROAD; SAID POINT ALSO BEING THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE 

PROPERTY HEREIN DESCRIBED; THENCE CONTINUE NORTH 89-DEGREES 29-MINUTES 

37-SECONDS WEST, 110.42 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 00-DEGREES 31-MINUTES 33-

SECONDS EAST, 180.12 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 

COUNTY ROAD NO. 64 (80' RIGHT-OF-WAY); THENCE RUN NORTH 89-DEGREES 36-

MINUTES 21-SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE A DISTANCE 

OF 110.44 FEET TO THE INTERSECTION OF THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 

POLLARD ROAD; THENCE RUN SOUTH 00-DEGREES 31-MINUTES 36-SECONDS WEST 

ALONG SAID WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE A DISTANCE OF 181.85 FEET TO THE POINT 

OF BEGINNING CONTAINING 0.46 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne on June 11, 2013 has considered said 

request and set forth an unanimous unfavorable recommendation to the City Council of the City of Daphne 

that said property  be rezoned; and 

 

 WHEREAS, after proper publication, a public hearing was held by the City Council on Monday, 

July 15, 2013 concerning the requested rezoning. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, that said property described above is hereby rezoned from R-2, Medium Density 

Single Family Residential District to B-3, Professional Business District, and that the zoning ordinance and 

zoning map be amended to reflect the said zoning change. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, 

THIS                   , day of                        2013. 

         

 

                    _______________________ 

        Dane Haygood,  

Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 

___________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, 

City Clerk 

31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



ORDINANCE NO. 2013 –  

 

 

Ordinance to Rezone Property Northwest of the Intersection of TimberCreek 

Subdivision and Interstate 10 

Interstate-Baldwin Investment, LLC 
 

 WHEREAS, the owners of certain real property within the City of Daphne, Alabama, have 

requested that said property be rezoned from B-2, General Business District to R-6 (G), Garden or Patio 

Home District, said property is located Northwest of the intersection of TimberCreek Subdivision and 

Interstate 10 being more particularly described as follows:  

 

Legal Description: 

 
BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 28, T4S R2E , BALDWIN COUNTY, 

ALABAMA, THENCE RUN N 00° 02' 26" W 1323.41 FEET TO A POINT ON A WESTWARD 

PROJECTION OF THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF WILSON HEIGHTS SUBDIVISION, FIRST UNIT 

AS PER PLAT RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 5, PAGE 123 OF THE PROBATE COURT RECORDS OF 

BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA; THENCE RUN S 89° 09' 40" E ALONG SAID PROJECTION LINE 

AND SAID SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF WILSON HEIGHTS SUBDIVISION, FIRST UNIT, AND 

ALONG THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF WILSON HEIGHTS SUBDIVISION, THIRD UNIT, AS PER 

PLAT RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 5, PAGE 184 OF SAID PROBATE COURT RECORDS OF BALDWIN 

COUNTY, ALABAMA, A DISTANCE OF 1527.71 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF 

TIMBERCREEK, PHASE NINE (AMENDED PLAT), AS PER PLAT RECORDED ON SLIDE NO. 2056-D 

OF SAID PROBATE COURT RECORDS OF BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA; THENCE RUN S 20° 51' 

15" W ALONG THE WESTERN BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID TIMBERCREEK, PHASE NINE (AMENDED 

PLAT) A DISTANCE OF 296.10 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST TERMINUS OF PERSIMMON 

DRIVE; THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID WESTERN BOUNDARY LINE OF TIMBERCREEK, PHASE 

NINE (AMENDED PLAT) AND ALONG SAID WEST TERMINUS OF PERSIMMON DRIVE RUN S 26° 

13' 34" W  60.00 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTHERN RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF SAID 

PERSIMMON DRIVE, THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID WESTERN BOUNDARY LINE OF 

TIMBERCREEK, PHASE NINE (AMENDED PLAT) AND ALONG SAID SOUTHERN RIGHT OF WAY LINE 

OF PERSIMMON DRIVE, RUN S 63° 46' 26" E 20.33 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE CONTINUING 

ALONG SAID WESTERN BOUNDARY LINE OF TIMBERCREEK, PHASE NINE (AMENDED PLAT) RUN 

AS FOLLOWS: S 26° 13' 34" W 150.00 FEET, S 63° 46' 26" E 135.23 FEET, S 12° 39' 

08" W 123.51 FEET, S 23° 27' 51" E 138.95 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE CONTINUING 

ALONG SAID WESTERN BOUNDARY LINE OF TIMBERCREEK, PHASE NINE ( AMENDED PLAT) AND 

ALONG THE WEST TERMINUS OF PINE RUN, RUN S 15° 43' 34 W 250.00 FEET TO A POINT 

ON THE SOUTHERN RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF SAID PINE RUN;  THENCE CONTINUING ALONG 

SAID WESTERN BOUNDARY LINE OF TIMBERCREEK, PHASE NINE (AMENDED PLAT) AND ALONG 

SAID SOUTHERN RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF PINE RUN, RUN S 74° 16' 26" E 41.00 FEET TO A 

POINT ; THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID WESTERN BOUNDARY LINE OF TIMBERCREEK, PHASE 

NINE (AMENDED PLAT) RUN S 15° 43' 34" W 222.16 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF 

SAID TIMBERCREEK, PHASE NINE (AMENDED PLAT); THENCE ALONG THE SOUTHERN BOUNDARY 

LINE OF SAID TIMBERCREEK, PHASE NINE (AMENDED PLAT) RUN AS FOLLOWS: S 78° 27' 

58" E 130.46 FEET, S 83° 59' 10" E 167.69 FEET, S 58° 15' 04" E 308.72 FEET TO A 

POINT; THENCE RUN S 08° 26' 50" E 340.74 FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTH RIGHT OF 

WAY LINE OF INTERSTATE HIGHWAY NO. 10; THENCE RUN S 81° 33' 10" W ALONG SAID 

NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF INTERSTATE HIGHWAY NO. 10, A DISTANCE OF 240.59 FEET 

TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF AN EXISTING SANITARY SEWER PUMP STATION SITE; THENCE 

RUN N 08° 26' 50" W ALONG THE EAST BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID SANITARY SEWER PUMP 

STATION SITE, A DISTANCE OF 30.00 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SANITARY 

SEWER PUMP STATION SITE; THENCE RUN S 81° 33' 10" W ALONG THE NORTH BOUNDARY 

LINE OF SAID SANITARY SEWER PUMP STATION SITE, A DISTANCE OF 40.00 FEET TO THE  

NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SANITARY SEWER PUMP STATION SITE; THENCE RUN S 08° 26' 

50" E ALONG THE WEST BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID SANITARY SEWER PUMP STATION SITE, A 

DISTANCE OF 30.00 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SANITARY SEWER PUMP 

STATION SITE, SAID POINT BEING ON THE AFOREMENTIONED NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF 

INTERSTATE HIGHWAY NO. 10; THENCE RUN S 81° 33' 10" W ALONG SAID NORTH RIGHT OF 

WAY LINE OF INTERSTATE HIGHWAY NO. 10, A DISTANCE OF 1769.26 FEET TO A POINT; 

THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF INTERSTATE HIGHWAY NO. 

10 RUN S 81° 31' 27" W 10.41 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF AN EXISTING 

SANITARY SEWER PUMP STATION SITE; THENCE RUN N 08° 28' 33" W ALONG THE EAST 
50



BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID SANITARY SEWER PUMP STATION SITE, A DISTANCE OF 30.00 FEET 

TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SANITARY SEWER PUMP STATION SITE; THENCE RUN S 

81° 31' 27" W ALONG THE NORTH BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID SANITARY SEWER PUMP STATION 

SITE, A DISTANCE OF 40.00 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SANITARY SEWER 

PUMP STATION SITE; THENCE RUN S 08° 28' 33" E ALONG THE WEST BOUNDARY LINE OF 

SAID SANITARY SEWER PUMP STATION SITE, A DISTANCE OF 30.00 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST 

CORNER OF SAID SANITARY SEWER PUMP STATION SITE, SAID POINT BEING ON THE 

AFOREMENTIONED  NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF INTERSTATE HIGHWAY NO. 10, THENCE RUN 

S 81° 31' 27" W ALONG SAID NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF INTERSTATE HIGHWAY NO. 10, 

A DISTANCE OF 798.04 FEET TO A POINT ON THE CENTERLINE OF A NATURAL DRAIN; 

THENCE ALONG SAID CENTERLINE OF A NATURAL DRAIN, RUN AS FOLLOWS: N 27° 11' 27" W 

182.77 FEET, N 41° 34' 42" W 146.10 FEET, N 57° 14' 28" W 276.05 FEET, N 30° 58' 

45" W 144.94 FEET, N 48° 54' 33" W 263.34 FEET, N 48° 17' 00" W 273.03 FEET TO A 

POINT ON THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF SENIOR DOUGLAS SUBDIVISION, AS PER PLAT 

RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 8, PAGE 116 OF THE AFOREMENTIONED PROBATE COURT RECORDS OF  

BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA; THENCE RUN N 89° 43' 17" E 419.65 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST 

CORNER OF SAID SENIOR DOUGLAS SUBDIVISION; THENCE RUN N89° 25' 13" E 1321.85 

FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. CONTAINING 97.4945 ACRES. 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne on June 11, 2013 has considered said 

request and set forth an unanimous favorable recommendation to the City Council of the City of Daphne 

that said property  be rezoned; and 

 

 WHEREAS, after proper publication, a public hearing was held by the City Council on Monday, 

July 15, 2013 concerning the requested rezoning. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, that said property described above is hereby rezoned from B-2, General Business 

District to R-6 (G), Garden or Patio Home District, and that the zoning ordinance and zoning map be 

amended to reflect the said zoning change. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, 

THIS                   , day of                        2013. 

         

 

                    _______________________ 

        Dane Haygood,  

Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 

___________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, 

City Clerk 

51



52



53



54



 

 

 

REPORT  

OF  

STANDING COMMITTEES 

55



CITY OF DAPHNE 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 
   JULY 8, 2013 

4:00 P.M. 
 
I.      CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 

The meeting was called to order at 4:00 pm.  Present were Chairperson Mrs. Conaway, Councilman 
Ron Scott, Councilman Joseph Davis, Deputy Finance Director Christine Ciancetta,  Senior 
Accountant Suzânne Henson and Accounting Technician Sue Moody. 
Councilman John Lake arrived at 4:23p.m. 
 
Also in attendance were Human Resource Director Vickie Hinman, Public Works Director Richard 
Johnson, Environmental Programs Manager Ashley Campbell, and Civic Center Director Margaret 
Thigpen. 
 

II.      PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
A.   S.E.E.D.S – Mr. David Tarwater, Director 
 
Mr. Tarwater presented a packet of information about S.E.E.D.S. and reviewed the purpose and 
accomplishments of the organization and presented a packet of information including financial reports 
and the organizations Mission Statement:  To promote a lifelong love of learning among the children 
of Daphne by providing enrichment opportunities at school and in the community and by advocating 
for educational improvements and innovation.  Mr. Tarwater discussed the per pupil Expenditure 
Comparison Report for 2011-2012 and noted that Baldwin County ranks below Madison City, Hoover 
City, and Mobile County.  Mr. Tarwater noted that out of 132 School Districts in Alabama that Baldwin 
County ranks 97th in funding – meaning that 97 out of 132 are funded better than Baldwin County.   
Information in the packet was reviewed and discussion that other Cities are contributing to their 
schools as follows: Gulf Shores - $988 over 4 years , Fairhope $350,000 (70,000/per school in 2012, 
and Foley $50,000 in 2012 & 2013.   Mr. Tarwater explained this is why the S.E.E.D. organization is 
so important.  Mr. Tarwater went on to compliment the City for all the financial and in-kind assistance 
it currently gives the schools and noted that the City gave an initial contribution of $30,000 in 2005 
and continues to pay $22,000 Recreation Consultant (DHS Head Coach) and $26,000 for Summer 
coaches for clinics (approximately 11- 20 coaches/year).  Mr. Tarwater noted the City also helps 
maintain the school’s ball fields (estimate cost of In-Kind at $20,000) (the City also uses the ball fields 
for City sports programs).  Mr. Tarwater continued that he wanted new people moving in the area to 
compare the local schools and choose to live in Daphne and emphasized that improving Daphne 
Schools is very important. Ms. D’Oliveira spoke on behalf of S.E.E.D.S. fundraising activities and 
promoted their two biggest fund raisers Mama Mia Cook-off and the Classic Rock 5k run.  Ms. 
D’Oliveira reviewed their new vision projects: Establishing a foreign language studies for K-6, 
Hobson’s Naviance College & Career-readiness platform, and 135 IPads for Grades K-6.  Ms. 
D’Oliveira introduced Mr. Mark Doherty, Daphne Elementary East Principal.  Mr. Doherty spoke about 
the current project of setting up wireless internet throughout the school and noted the school has 963 
students, 43 regular teachers and they currently have 8 IPads.  Mr. Doherty noted it is their plan to 
increase the number of IPads they currently have to 35 for interactive learning.  Discussion continued 
on the importance of preparing the elementary children now for Middle School curriculum and beyond 
that for the Global Economy.  Discussion continued that Daphne High School is the first Baldwin 
County School to receive the National Blue Ribbon Award from the U.S. Department of Education, 
Daphne High currently has an 85% graduation rate (highest in Baldwin County) and DHS currently 
has 134 students enrolled in the IB/Pre-IB classes.  A presentation was also given at the Council 
Work Session following the Finance Committee meeting. 
 
 

56



Finance Minutes.doc  2  

 
 

 

III.    HUMAN RESOURCES BUSINESS 
 

A.  Update on Human Resources Department Activity 
Mrs. Vickie Hinman reviewed the Human Resource Report including open position status. 
 

Positions   Status 
Accounting Technician Open    (Posting ended: 4-15-13 / Interviews completed: 5-08-13) 

Finance Director  Interviewing    (Posting ended 06-18-13) 

Revenue Officer  Reviewing (30) applications   (Posting ended 6-28-13) 

Sr. Mechanic   Posting ends: 7/15/13 
 
Ms. Hinman reviewed the open positions above and noted that the Accounting Technician is being 
held open by the Mayor pending the hiring of the new Finance Director.  Ms. Hinman noted there were 
13 applications received for the Finance Director position and four (4) interviews have been held.  Ms. 
Hinman noted the interviews for the Revenue Officer position will begin soon.  Ms. Hinman added that 
the only position currently being advertised is the Senior Mechanic position.  Ms. Hinman reviewed 
the Human Resource Departments activities for the last month as well as upcoming events.  Ms. 
Hinman also discussed the upcoming Emergency Operations Training for City employees.  Mr. 
Richard Johnson explained the Two Basic Incident Command Training classes that will be offered for 
Team Leaders and Supervisors regarding the City’s Emergency Operations Plan and Incident 
Command.  The class will be offered on July 16 and July 18, and these personnel must only attend 
one class.  Also, on August 7th and August 8th an Executive Level Training on Incident 
Command/Emergency Operations Plan/Incident Action Plan will be held for Department heads and 
key people who will have a roll in a time of emergency. 
 

IV. CURRENT BUSINESS 
 

A.  Financial Reports 

 
1.  Treasurer’s Report:  June 30, 2013 (Motion)  

 
Mrs. Henson noted that the reconciled Treasurer’s Report for May was included in the packet for 
review.  Mrs. Henson then reviewed the DRAFT Treasurer’s Report for June 2013 totaling 
$17,174,489.70 but noted that this was a draft report ONLY since all the cash receipts were not 
entered for the month as well as all Bank Statements were not reconciled to date.  Mrs. Henson noted 
the part-time person is dedicated to ONLY entering cash receipts and has not completed the month’s 
receipts and bank statements cannot be reconciled until all cash receipts are entered.  (NOTE:  the 
Full-Time position is currently vacant and pending hiring of a full time employee. 
 

Mrs. Henson further reviewed the Investment account and noted she was completing the paperwork 
to get new signatories on the account.  Mrs. Henson noted that final payments for projects funded 
from the 2012 Construction fund need to be monitored as monies will need to be wired out of the 2012 
Investment Fund.  Mrs. Henson also noted that Council may want to revisit the funds that need to 
remain invested for the 2012 Fund as there have been losses on this investment.  
 

Motion needed when final Treasurer’s Report is submitted for June 2013  
 

 
 
 
 

57



Finance Minutes.doc  3  

2.  Sales and Use Taxes: June collections for May 2013 
 

Mrs. Henson noted that the collections presented ($1,098,896.81) are a DRAFT presentation 
as all cash receipts have not been entered for the month therefore the accounts cannot be 
reconciled.  (NOTE:  the Full-Time position is currently vacant and pending hiring of a full time employee. 
 

3.  Lodging Tax Collections, June collections for May 2013 
 

Mrs. Henson noted that the Lodging Tax collections presented ($68,448.49) are a DRAFT 
presentation as all cash receipts have not been entered for the month therefore the accounts 
cannot be reconciled.  (NOTE:  the Full-Time position is currently vacant and pending hiring of a full time 

employee. 

 
4. Report: New Business Licenses –  June  2013     

 
Mrs. Conaway reviewed the Business License Report:  43 New Businesses and 0 Businesses closed     
 

     
5.  Bills Paid Reports –   June  2013 

The Bills Paid Report was presented in the packet.  Mrs. Conaway asked if there were any questions 
on the Bills Paid Report. 
 

B. Appropriation Request:  (Ordinance) 
 
1. ATRIP – Bayview Drive and Ridgewood Drive from Rolling Hill Drive to Dunbar Loop-1.895 

miles (Lake Forest Phase III)- $500,147 (Ordinance) & (Resolution authorizing execution of 
agreement) 

 
Mr. Johnson discussed the project area is:  Bayview Drive and Ridgewood Drive from Rolling Hill 
Drive to Dunbar Loop (Lake Forest Phase III).  Mr. Johnson stated the Ordinance and Resolution is 
included in the packet and is formatted according to ALDOT requirements.  Mr. Johnson explained 
that the bid was let by the State and awarded to Hosea Weaver & Sons on June 28, 2013 and the City 
has 30 days from this date to pay its share.  Ms. Henson discussed that Council would need to 
suspend the rules and approve the Ordinance so monies could be paid.  Discussion continued on the 
project. 
 

Motion by Councilman John Lake to adopt an ordinance appropriating $500,147 from 
the General Fund to be transferred to the Capital Reserve Fund for the Resurfacing of 
Bay View Drive and Ridgewood Drive from Rolling Hill Drive to Dunbar Loop (Lake 
Forest Phase III) and to adopt a resolution authorizing the entering of the agreement 
between the City of Daphne and the State of Alabama Department of Transportation 
(ALDOT).  Seconded by Councilman Ron Scott.  Motion carried. 

 
 

2. U.S. 98 (SR 42) Service Road Extension in Baldwin Co Agreement between the City, ALDOT 
and Two Step Partners, LLC- $242,000/each + $77,578 Preliminary Engineering (Ordinance 
includes authorizing execution of agreement and approving Volkert Engineering as the 
engineer for the project). 

 
Mr. Johnson discussed the Service Road Extension project and noted the cost is split three ways 
between the City, ALDOT, and Two Step Partners, LLC - $242,000/each.  Mr. Johnson explained the 
City is responsible for the preliminary engineering estimated to be $77,578.  Mr. Johnson noted that 
the engineer for the project will be Volkert Engineering.  Discussion continued that the property is near 
Pizza Hut. 

58



Finance Minutes.doc  4  

 

Motion by Councilman Ron Scott to adopt an ordinance appropriating $318,578 out of 
the General Fund to be transferred to the Capital Reserve Fund for the U.S 98 Service 
Road Extension project.  Seconded by Councilman John Lake.  Motion carried. 

 
C.  City of Daphne Village Point-Bay Front Invasive Species Grant Project-authorize 

application for grant- Grant amount $45,025 / City’s cash match $5000 / In-Kind 
Services-$5,120)  

 
Mrs. Ashley Campbell requested that Council approve for her to apply for the Village Point Bayfront 
Invasive Species Grant.  Ms. Campbell noted that  the total grant amount is $45,025 with the City’s 
estimate match being $10,120 ($5,120 In-Kind & $5,000 cash) .  Ms. Campbell noted if the grant is 
approved an appropriation request will come back before the Council for approval. 

 

Motion by Councilman John Lake to authorize applying for the Village Point Park & 
Bay Front Park Invasive Species Control Project Grant.  Seconded by Councilman Ron 
Scott.  Motion carried. 
 

D. Yancey Branch-Abandoned Dirt Pit Restoration (Williams Property currently being purchased 

by the City) – project cost estimate - $61,200 
 

Mrs. Ashley Campbell discussed the Yancey Branch abandoned dirt pit  and that this was the 
Williams property that the City was currently purchasing.  Mrs. Campbell discussed  the need for 
restoration of the property to reduce harmful sediment laden runoff and minimize future erosion.  Ms. 
Campbell noted if the grant is approved an appropriation request will come back before the Council 
for approval. 

 

Motion by Councilman John Lake to authorize applying for Restoration of the Yancey 
Branch - Abandoned Dirt Pit.  Seconded by Councilman Ron Scott.  Motion carried. 

  
E. Issuance of a Procurement Credit Card for IT related purchases, Equipment & Supplies  

  
The Mayor reviewed the need for the City to have a credit card for procurement since the current 
credit cards were designated for training and travel expenditures.  The Mayor discussed removing the 
current transfer documentation required when another employee transfers the card into their 
possession.  Mrs. Henson noted that some documentation is necessary so purchases can be tracked 
and department head approvals can be obtained.  The Mayor also noted that a higher limit (up to 
$30,000) was needed for the card and discussed the credit limitation issues experienced during the 
recent process of making some purchases for the City’s new IT network infrastructure.  The Mayor 
said the card would be kept in the Finance Department.  Mrs. Henson noted that the resolution stated 
up to $30,000 since the credit limit would have to be approved by the credit card company after 
application. 

 

Motion by Councilman Ron Scott  to adopt a resolution to establish a procurement 
credit card with a credit limit up to $30,000 for the purchase of equipment, supplies, 
and IT related items.  Seconded by  Mr. John Lake.  Motion carried. 
 
  

V. OLD BUSINESS 
 

VI. ADJOURN   
The meeting adjourned at 5:15p.m. 

59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



Ordinance  Committee Page 1 
 

                                                                              Ordinance Committee 
    Wednesday, June 12, 2013 

1705 Main Street 

Daphne, AL 

5:30 p.m. 

                                                                               
                                                                                  

  

Councilman Randy Fry, Chairman       

Councilman Ron Scott                                                                  

Councilman Robin LeJeune 

Councilman Pat Rudicell 

 

       CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
I. CALL TO ORDER: 

 Chairman Fry called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 

 

 MEMBERS PRESENT:   Pat Rudicell; Ron Scott; Robin LeJeune.                                               

 

ABSENT:  Randy Fry. 

 

Also present:  Rebecca Hayes, recording secretary; Lt. Ric Yelding; Michael Hoyt; Leah 

Henry; Adrienne Jones; Vickie Hinman; Sherree Hilburn; Scott Hetrick, City Attorney. 

 

II.  APPROVE MINUTES  / June 12, 2013 

 

Motion by Councilman Scott to approve the June 12, 2013 minute.  Seconded by Councilman 

LeJeune. 

 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

 

III. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
No one spoke. The chairman reserved the right to open Public Participation back up if 

anyone came. 

 

 

IV.      ANIMAL CONTROL ORDINANCE  
Lt. Yelding asked the committee to omit cat from Section XIV D(3). 

Lt. Yelding also asked that in Section XIV D(2) the phrase “unless the owner or person-

in-charge of the dog has a visual of such dog and is physically present” be omitted, which 

will make it easier for the Animal Control Officers to enforce the ordinance. 

 

The committee discussed making the first offense for any offense a warning instead of 

citizens having to pay $15.00 and $200 in court cost as long it is a minor offense and not 

a violent or viscous animal. The person issued the warning must show proof of corrective 

action in a limited amount of time. 

 

131



Ordinance  Committee Page 2 
 

Lt. Yelding will discuss the changes with his superiors, and get with Kyle to make the 

needed changes.  Then the ordinance will go on the August 1
st
 agenda for a first read. 

 

 

V.  SCHEDULE OF FINES / JUDGE HOYT 

Judge Hoyt mentioned that the schedule of fines has been changed by the Legislature, 

therefore, the city needs to update the Schedule of Fines so that the magistrate can assess 

and collect the fines.  The city has to adopt the changes for this to happen. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to send the ordinance updating the Schedule of 

Fines with a recommendation for adoption.    Seconded by  Councilman Scott. 

 

Motion Carried Unanimously. 

 

 

  

VI. ORDINANCE REVIEW     

              

A.  Employee Handbook 

Mrs. Hinman, Mrs. Hilburn and Scott Hetrick were present to give an overview of the 

changes to the Employee Handbook.  Mrs. Hinman said that laws have changed and the 

handbook needs to be updated.  They have been working on the revisions for about one 

year. Mr. Hetrick said the revisions were to simplify and consolidate all ordinances in the 

handbook to make it flow better.  The laws have changed regarding FMLA and Military 

Leave.   

 

Councilman Scott asked that these ordinance be held over to the next meeting to give the 

committee a chance to read through them, and asked Mr. Hetrick to send an executive 

summary of the ordinances.  

 

Mr. Hetrick and Mrs. Hinman said that the Firearm ordinance really needs attention now, 

because the law has changed. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to send the Firearms & Ammunition ordinance to 

council with a recommendation for adoption.  Seconded by Councilman LeJeune.  

 

Motion Carried Unanimously. 

 

 

B.  Amending the Land Use & Development Ordinance 

Mrs. Jones explained that there were three amendments that came from the June 27
th

 

Planning Commission meeting. 

1.) Amend Article 11-14(h) Common Open Space Provisions 

2.) Amend Article 8 Definitions of Terms to add “No Clear Zone” 

3.) Amend Articles 8 & 35 adding references to the Community Standards Ordinance 

2013-38 

 

 

132



Ordinance  Committee Page 3 
 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to send the amendments to the Land Use and 

Development Ordinance to council to set a public hearing date to consider the 

amendments.  Seconded by Councilman Scott.  

 

Motion Carried Unanimously. 

 

 

C.  BUSINESSE LISCENSE ORDINANCES CONSOLIDATION 
Mr. Scott said that they will lay this ordinance over to the next meeting to give the 

committee a chance to read it over.  

 

VII.     OTHER BUSINESS 

No other business to consider. 

 

VIII.   NEXT MEETING 
The next meeting will be August 14

th
  

 

 

IX.   ADJOURN 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adjourn.  Seconded by Council LeJeune. 

 

Motion Carried Unanimously. 

 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 7:00 p.m.  

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted 

 

 

Code Enforcement / Ordinance Committee 

 

133



 

 

 

REPORT  

OF  

SPECIAL BOARDS 

134



DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

1705 MAIN STREET         

DAPHNE, AL 

JUNE 26, 2013  

5:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e1
 

1.  CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

Casey Zito called the meeting to order at 5:40 p.m.. 

 

Members Present:  Casey Zito; Ken Balme; Dorothy Morrison; Dayna Oldham; Doug Bailey; 

Debbie Strahley; Ronald Nero. 

 

Absent: Patricia Vanderpool.  

 

Also Present: Rebecca Hayes, Recording Secretary; Councilwoman Conaway; Sarah Toulson. 

 

 

2.  APPROVE MINUTES / MAY 22, 2013 

 

MOTION BY Dorothy Morrison to amend the May 22, 2013 minutes under the heading of 

Next Meeting amending the time from 6:14 p.m. to 5:30 p.m., and to approve as amended.  

Seconded by Debbie Strahley.  

 

 AYE    Zito, Balme, Morrison, Oldham, Nero                  ABSTAIN    Bailey 

 

                                                                 MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

3.  OLD BUSINESS 

     a.)  Downtown Planters / Dorothy Morrison 

Ryan Ramsey brought one of the flower boxes he built for the members to view.  Once he 

has finished he will come before council to make a presentation of the finished project.  

The members did not want to plant the boxes until September so the boxes will be stored 

at city hall. 

 

    b.)  Plaque / Dorothy Morrison 

Dorothy said the plaque had been approved to be installed, and it should have been installed 

today. 

 

    c.)  Business Insert for Olde Towne Daphne Map 

Ken said that he will update the business insert every three (3) months. 

 

 

135



DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

1705 MAIN STREET         

DAPHNE, AL 

JUNE 26, 2013  

5:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e2
 

   d.) Christmas Tree  

Rebecca ordered the Christmas tree.  It will be delivered to Public Works and stored there until 

Christmas.  They want to check with Public Works on decorations and a topper for the tree. 

 

4.  TREASURERS REPORT 

Casey gave the Treasurers Report ending June 30, 2013 with a balance of $84,849.31.  A check 

for $9,335.29 was written for the Christmas tree. 

 

5.   NEW BUSINESS 

Annie Root, chairman of Bay Rivers Art Guild (BRAGG), reported that they would like to work 

with the DRA to promote the downtown area with some events. 

 

4.  BEAUTIFICATION REPORT 

Dorothy reported that the ribbon cutting for the new pedestrian bridge at Gator Alley is July 10
th

 

at 10:00 a.m. 

 

The members agreed that they will have an event unveiling the plaque and flower boxes on 

Thursday, October 17
th

. 

 

5.  NEXT MEETING 

The next meeting will be July 24
th

 at 5:30 p.m. 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 7:00 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted 

 

 

Downtown Redevelopment Authority 

 

 

       

136



137



JUNE 24, 2013 

CITY OF DAPHNE, AL  

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD MEETING  

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL  

6:00 P.M.  

 

P
ag

e1
 

 

1.  CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

The meeting was called to order at 6:05 p.m. 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT –Toni Fassbender; Doug Bailey; John R. Cox; Dan Romanchuk; Pokey 

Miller. 

 

Absent Excused:  Dennis Kearney, III. 

 

Absent Not Excused:  Angela Mayer 

 

Also present –  Rebecca Hayes, Recording Secretary. 

 

2. APPROVE MINUTES / SPECIAL CALLED APRIL 30, 2013 

 

MOTION BY Doug Bailey to approve the April 30, 2013 Special Called meeting minutes.  

Seconded by John Cox.  MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

3.  OLD BUSINESS 

None. 

 

 

4.   NEW BUSINESS 

Rettig Auto Body is asking for tax incentives, but they do not qualify under SIC requirements, 

because they are a retail business. 

 

5.)  TREASURERS REPORT  

 

Dan Romanchuk gave the report totaling $255,369.00 with receivables (January – June) of 

$10,675.75 totaling $266,044.75 

 

MOTION by Doug Bailey to approve the Treasurers Report  with a balance of $253,338.29. 

  Seconded by John Cox.  MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

138



JUNE 24, 2013 

CITY OF DAPHNE, AL  

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD MEETING  

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL  

6:00 P.M.  

 

P
ag

e2
 

 

5.  OTHER BUSINESS 

Rebecca was asked to check with the League if they can amend the by-laws, and if they can vote 

by proxy. 

 

MOTION BY Dan Romanchuk to explore ways to support the city’s development of a 

strategic plan.  Seconded by Doug Bailey.  MOTION  CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.       

 

Toni asked the members to think about changes to make to the operational policy that will take 

the board into the 21
st
 century. 

 

 

MOTION BY Doug Bailey to recommend to the City Council the re-appointment of Dan 

Romanchuk, term  12/2012 – 12/2018 and Denis Kearney, term 12/2011 - 2017.  MOTION 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 

 

6.   ADJOURN 

 

MOTION BY Doug Bailey to adjourn.  Seconded by John Cox. 

 

ALL IN FAVOR  NONED OPPOSED  MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS THE MEETING ADJOUNED AT 

 7:03 P.M. 

 
 

Approved: 

 

 

________________________ 

Toni Fassbender, Chairman 

139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



 
 

 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
 
 

**** 
 

CITY OF DAPHNE 
 

There will be a meeting of the City of Daphne 
Sign Committee held 

Tuesdays in 2013 on the 
following days:  

July 9th, July 16th,  
July 23rd, July 30th,  

August 6th, August 13th from 
4:30 p.m. to 6:00 p.m., in the 

Executive Council 
Chambers at City Hall 

(across from the 
Clerk’s Office) 

 
**** 

 
 
 

Note: An agenda will be posted at the City of Daphne 
Public Library and City Hall for reference. 
Additional information available at the 

City of Daphne 
Community Development Department 

Pat Johnson 
(251)621-3184 

187



City of Daphne Recreation Board 
2605 Hwy 98 

Daphne, AL. 36526 
May 15, 2013 

 
Members Present:   Rick Cleveland, Matt Cunningham, Frank Pierce and Glenn Vickery 
 
Members Absent:   Doug Dugat, Jan Mittemeyer, Lisa O’Hara and Kit Smith    
 
Advisory Staff:   Councilman Robin LeJeune and David McKelroy – Parks & Recreation Director 
 
Call to Order 
Meeting was called to order at6:37pm. 
 
Review and Approval of Minutes 
Motion was made by Rick Cleveland and seconded by Matt Cunningham to approve the April 10, 2013 
minutes.  Motion passed. 
 
Public Participation 
Tommy Smith representing the Mobile Bay FC (soccer) spoke to the board requesting field space for 
practice at Trione Sports Complex in the fall and spring.  Unfortunately these are peak times for Daphne 
Recreation soccer program and Daphne Strike Soccer Club, no space is available for the times requested. 
 
Steven Hazelwood spoke on behave of the Adult Soccer program in Daphne and his continued desire to 
help and improve area soccer. 
 
Program Reports 
Information was provided regarding programs.  Upcoming special events are Art in the Park and Wet-N-
Wild Wednesday. 
 
Old / New Business 
 

1.  Lodging Tax      Councilman LeJeune provided information on the current balance on 
recreational funds due the city and spoke about possible adjustments to the ordinance to 
provide more funds to capital for recreation. 
 

2. Bocce – Bay Front Additional information was provided the board about bocce. 
 

Comments from Advisors 

Rick Cleveland spoke about the need for additional parks and recreation personal.   

Frank Pierce spoke about the condition of the press box at Daphne Jubilee Stadium. 

Rick Cleveland congratulated Coach Glenn Vickery on his induction into the Baldwin County Sports Hall 

 of Fame. 

 

Adjourn 

Meeting was adjourned at 7:43pm. 

188



 

 
 
 
 

 
  

189



190



191



192



 

 

 

REPORT  

OF  

OFFICERS 

193



 
ALABAMA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

AGREEMENT FOR THE COOPERATIVE MAINTENANCE 
OF PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY 

 
          Permit No.__________________ 
 
 
DIVISION ______________________  DISTRICT ____________________________ 
 
THIS AGREEMENT, entered into this the ____ day of ______________, 20_____,  between the  

Alabama Department of Transportation acting by and  through its Transportation Director 

hereinafter referred to as the STATE and ________________________________________ 

herein referred to as the APPLICANT in an effort to secure a more pleasing appearance on the 

roadside between _______________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________ 

on Route ______, the  APPLICANT agrees to maintain the vegetative cover in the 

___________________________________by means of mowing with a flail or rotary mower and 

hand trimming such that a clean and attractive appearance is obtained.  Mowing operations shall 

be conducted when the height of the vegetative cover reaches _____ inches and rescheduled in 

accordance with the planned frequency.  In the event that shrubs and/or minor trees are planted 

within the area, trimming around the plant materials shall be done in conjunction with mowing to 

obtain a clean and attractive appearance.  Clippings or other incidental debris (such as branches, 

trash, etc.) shall be removed if mounting of the clippings or other incidental debris occurs. 

In accepting the above, the Department of Transportation and the APPLICANT agree to do the 
following: 
 

1. The APPLICANT will see that adequate sight distances are maintained for 
maximum public safety; otherwise the Department of Transportation reserves the right 
to remedy this situation in the most expedient manner. 

 

194



2. The Department of Transportation is not responsible for the safety of the individual 
involved or taking part in this work during maintenance operations.  Signs used must 
be in accordance with the latest version of the MUTCD currently in use by ALDOT. 

 
3. If Department of Transportation construction (repair of drainage and traffic 

structures, crossovers and other minor construction) is done in the subject area, it will 
be the responsibility of the Department of Transportation to establish a stand of 
vegetative cover if deemed necessary by the Department of Transportation and then the 
APPLICANT’s responsibility to maintain the vegetative cover as stipulated herein.  In 
the event of major construction in the subject area, this Agreement shall be voided at a 
time designated by the Department of Transportation. 

 
4. The APPLICANT will provide litter pick up as needed to insure a pleasing 

appearance along the roadside. 
 

5. All work shall be subject to the inspection and approval of the Alabama Department 
of Transportation.  Description of the proposed work must accompany this and any 
associated proposal.  If the maintenance is not conducted as specified herein, the 
Department of Transportation shall assume maintenance and this Agreement will be 
invalid.  A copy of this Agreement must be kept by all parties that sign the Agreement.  
The State of Alabama does not grant applicant any right, title, or claim on any highway 
right-of-way. 

 
6. The APPLICANT agrees to store no equipment, branches, mounds of clippings or 

plant debris of any kind or any other material on the shoulders of pavement and in the 
case of multi-lane highways, in the median strips.  The pavement will be kept free from 
waste (clippings, mud and other debris) and equipment. 

 
7. The APPLICANT shall be solely responsible for and hold harmless the Alabama 

Department of Transportation for any claim for damage done to existing private 
property, public utility, or the traveling public. 

 
8. This Agreement is executed with the understanding that it is not valid until the 

APPLICANT has complied with all existing ordinances, laws and zoning boards that 
have jurisdiction in the county, city or municipality. 

 
9. Failure of the APPLICANT to conform to the provisions of this Agreement will be 

cause to terminate this Agreement.  Notification prior to termination will be made by 
the Department of Transportation. 

 
10. The APPLICANT will protect, defend, indemnify and hold harmless the State of 

Alabama, The Alabama Department of Transportation, the officials, officers, and 
employees, in both their official and individual capacities, and their agents and/or 
assigns, from and against any and all actions, damages, claims, loss, liabilities, 
attorney’s fees or expense whatsoever or any amount paid in compromise thereof 
arising out of or connected with the work performed under this Permit, and/or the 
APPLICANT’s failure to comply with all applicable laws or regulations. 

 
195



The above conditions are agreed upon: 
 
       Name of APPLICANT: 
 
       _______________________________________ 
        
 
 
       BY__________________________    _________
         Name and Title    Date 

  

 
       BY__________________________    _________
          Name and Title    Date   
   

  

       BY__________________________    _________
        Name and Title    Date    

  

 
            _____________________________________ 
                 Telephone Number 
 
 
 
For the Alabama Department of Transportation: 
 
_________________________________    
District Manager     Date 

___________ 

 
_________________________________    
Division Engineer     Date 

___________ 

 
_________________________________    
Maintenance Engineer    Date 

___________ 

196



I - 10 
S

ta
te

 R
o

a
d

 1
8
1
 

Cooperative Maintenance Agreement 

City of Daphne — ALDOT 9th Division 

Quadrants of the SR181/I 10 Exchange 

Subject ROW 

4 Quadrants 

NORTH 

197



 

 

 

RESOLUTIONS 

& 

ORDINANCES 

198



 
 

CITY OF DAPHNE 
 

RESOLUTION 2013-38 
 

Resurfacing 1.895 miles on Bay View Drive and Ridgewood Drive from 
Rolling Hill Drive to Dunbar Loop 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama 
as follows: 
 

1. That the City of Daphne, Alabama enter into an agreement with the State of 
Alabama, acting by and through the Alabama Department of Transportation 
for: 

The resurfacing on Bay View Drive and Ridgewood Drive from 
Rolling Hill Drive to Dunbar Loop.  Length- 1.895 miles.  Project# 
ACOA59010-ATRP (001); ATRIP# 02-01-22 

 
Which Agreement is before this Council; 
 

2. That the Agreement be executed in the name of the City, by its Mayor, for 
and on its behalf; and 

 
3. That the agreement be attested by the City Clerk and the seal of the City be 

affixed thereto. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that upon the completion of the execution of the 
Agreement by all parties, that a copy of such Agreement be kept on file by the City 
Clerk, Finance Director, and Public Works Director. 

 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED this ________ day of ____________, 2013. 
 

 
      _______________________________ 
      Dane Haygood, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 

___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

      
I, the undersigned qualified and acting clerk of the City of Daphne, 

Alabama, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a true copy of a 
Resolution passed and adopted by the City Council of the City of Daphne at a 
regular meeting of such Council held on the _____ day of ______________, 2013, 
and that such resolution is on file in the City Clerk’s office. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the 

official seal of the City on the ____________ day of __________________, 2013. 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

199



 
RESOLUTION 2013-39 

 
A Resolution Authorizing Issuance of a Credit Card for Procurement 

 
 
WHEREAS, Resolution 1996-45 adopted July 15, 1996, authorized the issuance 
of a City of Daphne credit card to certain department heads and employees; and 
  
WHEREAS, purchases for equipment, supplies, services, and other items from a 
large number of vendors require payment by credit card, and 
 
WHEREAS, the City’s current policies for departmental credit cards and credit 
limits associated with the departmental credit cards do not provide a sufficient 
means to purchase certain purchases of such items, and 
 
WHEREAS, it is advantageous for the City of Daphne to not have to limit vendor 
selection based on payment terms, and 
 
WHEREAS, a credit card for procurement would streamline the procurement 
process for certain high-dollar purchases and increase operational efficiency, and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne now deems it necessary to authorize the issuance 
of an additional credit card for in an amount up to $30,000 as approved by the 
credit card company for procurement purposes 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the 
City of Daphne that Section 1 of Resolution 1996-45 is hereby amended to 
include this additional credit card assigned to either the Mayor or Finance Director  
for procurement.  All other provisions of Resolution 1996-45 remain in full force 
and effect. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DAPHNE, ALABAMA, this ______ day of ______________, 2013. 
 
       

 
     _________________________________ 
     Dane Haygood,  Mayor 
      
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

200



 

1                                 ORDINANCE 2013-31                               PUBLIC INDECENCY 

 

CITY OF DAPHNE 

ORDINANCE NO. 2013-31 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO REGULATE PUBLIC INDECENCY 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

WHEREAS the City Council of the City of Daphne desires separate the regulation of 

Public Indecency from the regulation of Sexually Oriented Businesses and Tattoo Facilities; and 

 

WHEREAS the City Council of the City of Daphne will pass an ordinance regulating 

Sexually Oriented Businesses and Tattoo Facilities concurrently herewith. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 

 

PUBLIC INDECENCY 

 

A)  

 Definitions. As used in this section, the following words and terms shall have the 

following meanings:  

 

(1) Nude (Nudity). The showing, display or appearance of:  

 

(a) All or any part of the human male or female genitals, pubic area or 

anus with less than a fully opaque covering; 

 

(b) More than two-thirds (2/3) of the buttocks of the human male or 

female with less than a fully opaque covering; 

 

(c) Any portion of the human female areola or nipple with less than a fully 

opaque covering; or 

 

(d) The covered male genitals in a discernibly turgid state. 

 

(2) Public Place. Means any location which is frequently by the public, or where 

the public is present or likely to be present, or where a person may reasonably 

be expected to be observed by members of the public or is otherwise visible to 

members of the public. Public Places include, but are not limited to, streets, 

sidewalks, parks, beaches, business and commercial establishments (whether 

for profit or not-for-profit and whether open to the public at large or whether 

entrance is limited by age restrictions, cover charges, or membership 

requirements), bottle clubs, hotels, motels, restaurants, night clubs, country 

clubs, cabarets and meeting facilities utilized by any religious, social, 

fraternal, charitable or other organizations. Premises used solely as a private 

residence, whether permanent or temporary in nature, shall not be deemed a 

201



 

2                                 ORDINANCE 2013-31                               PUBLIC INDECENCY 

 

Public Place. Public Place shall not include enclosed single sex public 

restrooms, enclosed single sex functional showers, locker and/or dressing 

room facilities, enclosed motel rooms and hotel rooms designed and intended 

for sleeping accommodations, doctor’s offices, portions of hospitals and 

similar places in which Nudity or exposure is necessarily and customarily 

expected outside of the home and the sphere of privacy constitutionally 

protected herein. 

 

(3) Sexual Activity. Activities consisting of the following: 

 

(a) The stimulation, fondling or touching of male or female human genital 

organs or anus.  

 

(b) The stimulation, fondling or touching of the female breast. 

 

(c) Flagellation, torture, fettering, binding or other physical restraint of 

any persons in a sexual relationship. 

 

(4) Topless. The exposing of any portion of the human female breast below a 

horizontal line across the top or the areola at its highest point or simulation 

thereof excluding any portion of the cleavage of the human female breast 

exhibited by a dress, blouse, shirt, leotard, bathing suit or outerwear apparel. 

 

B)  

 Public indecency. It shall be unlawful for any person in a Public Place in the 

corporate limits or police jurisdiction of the City of Daphne to knowingly, intentionally 

or recklessly: 

 

(1) Engage in actual or simulated sexual intercourse, masturbation, sodomy, 

bestiality, oral copulation, flagellation, excretory functions; 

 

(2) Appear or suffer or permit another person to appear Nude or in a state of 

Nudity; 

 

(3) Fondle, touch or otherwise come in direct or indirect contact with the genitals 

of himself, herself, or another person;  

 

(4) Fondle, touch or otherwise come in direct or indirect contact with the female 

breasts of another person or to permit another person fondling, touching or 

otherwise coming in direct or indirect contact with a female’s breasts; 

 

(5) Display films, motion pictures, or other photographic reproductions which 

depict Nudity or Sexual Activity unless done in the operation of a Sexually 

Oriented Business as so provided under the Community Standards Ordinance; 

 

202



 

3                                 ORDINANCE 2013-31                               PUBLIC INDECENCY 

 

(6) Display instruments or devices (excluding contraceptives) which are used in 

Sexual Activity unless done in the operation of a Sexually Oriented Business 

as so provided under the Community Standards Ordinance; 

C)  

 Public indecency in establishment dealing in alcoholic beverages. 

 

(1) No person shall expose, show or display to public view his or her genitals, 

pubic area, vulva, anus, anal clef or cleavage or any simulation of such act in 

an establishment dealing in alcoholic beverages. 

 

(2) No female person shall appear Topless in an establishment dealing in 

alcoholic beverages. 

 

(3) No person maintaining, owning or operating an establishment dealing in 

alcoholic beverages shall suffer or permit any person to expose, show or 

display to the public view his or her genitals, pubic area, vulva, anus, anal clef 

or cleavage or simulation of such act within the establishments dealing in 

alcoholic beverages. 

 

(4) No person maintaining, owning or operating an establishment dealing in 

alcoholic beverages shall suffer or permit any female person to appear Topless 

within the establishment dealing in alcoholic beverages. 

 

(5) No person shall engage in and no person maintaining, owning or operating an 

establishment dealing in alcoholic beverages shall suffer or permit any sexual 

intercourse, masturbation, sodomy, bestiality, oral copulation, flagellation, 

any sexual act which is prohibited by law, touching, caressing or fondling of 

the breasts, buttocks, anus or genitals or the simulation of such acts within an 

establishment dealing in alcoholic beverages. 

 

(6) No person shall cause and no person maintaining, owning or operating an 

establishment dealing in alcoholic beverages shall suffer or permit the 

exposition of any graphic representation, including, but not limited to, pictures 

or the projection of film or image, which depicts human genitals, pubic area, 

vulva, anus, anal cleft or cleavage, Topless female(s), sexual intercourse, 

masturbation, sodomy, bestiality, oral copulation, flagellation, any sexual act 

prohibited by law, touching, caressing or fondling of the breasts, buttocks, 

anus or genitals or any simulation of such acts within any establishment 

dealing in alcoholic beverages. 

 

D)  

 Penalty. Any person found guilty of violating any provision of this Ordinance 

shall be punished by a fine of not less than fifty dollars ($50.00) nor more than five 

hundred dollars ($500.00), or by imprisonment for a period not exceeding six (6) months, 

or both, in the discretion of the municipal judge.   

 

203



 

4                                 ORDINANCE 2013-31                               PUBLIC INDECENCY 

 

SEVERABILITY 

 

The provisions of this Ordinance are severable.  If any provision, section, paragraph, 

sentence or part thereof shall be held to be unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not 

affect or impair the remainder of this Ordinance, it being the legislative intent to ordain and enact 

each provision, section, paragraph, sentence and part thereof separately and independently of 

each other. 

 

REPEALER 

 

Ordinance No. 2003-09 is hereby repealed in its entirety.  All other City Ordinances or 

parts thereof in conflict with the provision of this Ordinance, in so far as they conflict, are hereby 

repealed.  

 

EFFECTIVE DATE 
 

This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its approval by 

the City Council of the City of Daphne and publication as required by law.   

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA on this the ___ day of __________________ 2013. 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                                    

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF DAHNE 

 

 

 

_______________________________                                               

DANE HAYGOOD, MAYOR 

 

   

__________________________________ 

REBECCA A. HAYES, CITY CLERK 

 

 

 

 

 

204



 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

ORDINANCE NO. 2013-37 

 

 

Ordinance to Rezone Property Located  

Southwest of the intersection of Park Drive and Tallent Lane, 

 East of the Daphne Sports Complex 

Earth, Inc. 

 
 WHEREAS, Earth, Inc., as the owner of certain real property located within the City of Daphne, 

Alabama, has requested that said property be rezoned from R-3, High Density Single Family Residential 

District to R-6 (G), Garden or Patio Home District; and, 

 

WHEREAS, said real property is located southwest of the intersection of Park Drive and Tallent 

Lane, east of the Daphne Sports Complex, and more particularly described as follows:  
 

 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY TO BE REZONED FROM R-3, HIGH DENSITY SINGLE 

FAMILY RESIDENTIAL, TO AND R-6(G) GARDEN OR PATIO HOME: 

 

Legal Description: 
 

Beginning at the Southwest corner of Lot 27, Northern Division of Jackson Oaks Subdivision, as 

recorded in Map Book 3, Page 28 and recorded in Map Book 7, Page 36 Probate Court Records, 

Baldwin County, Alabama, run North 88°-49'-48" East, along the South line of said Lot 27, a 

distance of 271.86 feet; thence North 89°-13'-17" East, along the South line of Lot 28 In said 

subdivision, a distance of 226.43 feet; thence South 00°-39'-37" West, along the West right-of-way 

line of Tallent Lane, 19.86 feet; thence South 89°-07'-36" West, along the North boundary of 

property now or formerly of Revelation Missionary and property now or formerly of Felix B. 

Harrison, a distance of 414.49 feet; thence South 00°-16'-05" East, along the West line of said 

Harrison property and said Revelation Missionary property, a distance of 419.4 feet; thence North 

89°-14'-00" East, along the South boundary of said Revelation Missionary property, a distance of 

400.6 feet; thence South 00°-08'-04" East, along the West line of property now or formerly of the 

City of Daphne, 417.85 feet; thence South 89°-15'-47" West, along the North boundary of property 

now or formerly of Plan B Investments, LLC, a distance of 499.17 feet; thence North 00°-05'-40" 

West, along the East line of property now or formerly of the City of Daphne, a distance of 855.55 

feet to the Point of Beginning.  

 

 

WHEREAS, at the City of Daphne Planning Commission meeting on May 2, 2013 the Commission 

considered said request and failed to set forth an unfavorable recommendation which is no recommendation 

to the City Council of the City of Daphne that said property be rezoned; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, due notice of said proposed rezoning has been provided to the public as required by 

law through publication and open display at the Daphne Public Library and City Hall, a public hearing was 

held before the City Council on June 17, 2013; and, 

  

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne after due consideration and upon consideration 

of the recommendation of the Planning Commission, and the public hearing deemed that said application for 

rezoning of the above described real property is proper and in the best interest of the health, safety and 

welfare of the citizens of the City of Daphne, Alabama. 

 

 

 

 

 

 205



 

ORDINANCE 2013-37                     REZONE: EARTH, INC.                            PAGE   2 

 

 

 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, as follows: 

 

SECTION I: ZONING 

 

That above described real property is hereby rezoned from R-3, High Density Single Family 

Residential District to R-6 (G), Garden or Patio Home District, and that the zoning ordinance and zoning 

map be amended to reflect the said zoning change.  

 

SECTION III: REPEALER.  

 

 All other City Ordinances or parts thereof in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance, in so far as 

they conflict, are hereby repealed. 

 

SECTION IV: SEVERABILITY.  
 

 The provisions of this Ordinance are severable. If any provision, section, paragraph, sentence, or part 

thereof shall be held unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect or impair the remainder of said 

Ordinance, it being the legislative intent to ordain and enact each provision, section, paragraph, sentence, and 

part thereof separately and independently of each other. 

 

SECTION V: EFFECTIVE DATE.  
 

 This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its approval by the City 

Council of the City of Daphne and after publication as required by law. 
 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, THIS              day of                         , 2013. 

 

 

 

         

       _____________________________ 

       Dane Haygood, 

       Mayor 

 

                                        

        

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

206



207



208



CITY OF DAPHNE 

ORDINANCE NO. 2013-38 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE REGULATING COMMUNITY STANDARDS 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

WHEREAS, based on the evidence contained in Jules B. Gerard & Scott D. Bergthold 

entitled: Local Regulation of Adult Businesses (2013 ed.) along with the studies and various 

court decisions cited therein, the City Council of the City of Daphne has determined that 

Sexually Oriented Businesses (hereinafter defined) have negative secondary effects and are often 

associated with crime, downgrading of real property values and sexual exploitation; and 

 

WHEREAS the City Council of the City of Daphne desires to minimize the negative 

secondary effects of Sexually Oriented Businesses in order to protect the public health, safety 

and welfare of the citizens, preserve the quality of life, property values and character of the City 

of Daphne and deter the spread of urban blight; and 

 

WHEREAS it is the intent of the City Council of the City of Daphne to enact a content-

neutral ordinance regulating Sexually Oriented Businesses to further a compelling governmental 

interest of minimizing the negative secondary effects of Sexually Oriented Businesses in the City 

of Daphne; and 

 

WHEREAS it is not the intent of the City Council of the City of Daphne to suppress any 

speech activities protected by the United States Constitution or the Alabama Constitution; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 

 

COMMUNITY STANDARDS 

Section I Definitions.  As used in this section, the following words and terms shall 

have the following meanings: 

 

Adult Cabaret/Entertainment Facility.  A nightclub, bar, theater, concert hall, 

auditorium, restaurant or similar establishment which, having entertainment, staff, 

live performances or appearances by Nude or Topless females, or entertainment, 

live performances or appearances characterized by their emphasis on matters 

depicting, describing or relating to Nudity or Sexual Activity. 

 

Adult Companionship Establishment.  An establishment of business which 

provides the service of engaging in or listening to conversation, talk or discussion 

between an employee of the establishment and a customer, if such service is 

distinguished or characterized by their emphasis on matters depicting, describing 

or relating to Nudity or Sexual Activity.  

209



An Ordinance Regulating Community Standards 

2013-38 

Page 2 

 

 

Adult Novelty/Book Store.  An establishment which, as one of its Profit Centers, 

offers for sale or rental books, magazines, periodicals or other printed matter, or 

photographs, films, motion pictures, videocassettes, slides, tapes, records, 

compact disks or other form of visual or audio representations or instruments, 

devices, games, costumes, props or paraphernalia (excluding contraceptives) 

which are distinguished or characterized by their emphasis on matters depicting, 

describing or relating to Nudity or Sexual Activity. 

 

Adult Theater.  A commercial establishment where films, motion pictures, or 

other photographic reproductions are regularly shown or created which are 

distinguished or characterized by their emphasis on matters depicting, describing 

or relating to Nudity or Sexual Activity. 

 

Distinguished or characterized by.  To be “distinguished or characterized by” 

means the essential character or quality of an item.  As applied in this ordinance, 

no business shall be classified as a Sexually Oriented Business by virtue of 

showing, selling, or renting materials rated NC-17 or R by the Motion Picture 

Association of America. 

 

Minor.  Any unmarried person under the age of eighteen (18) years who is not 

emancipated. An emancipated minor is or has been married or has by court order 

otherwise been legally freed from the care, custody, and control of his or her 

parents. 

 

Nude (Nudity).  The showing, display or appearance of: 

(1) All or any part of the human male or female genitals, pubic area or 

anus with less than a fully opaque covering; 

(2) More than two-thirds (2/3) of the buttocks of the human male or 

female with less than a fully opaque covering; 

(3) Any portion of the human female areola or nipple with less than a fully 

opaque covering; or 

(4) The covered male genitals in a discernibly turgid state. 

 

Profit Center.  A collection of related products, items or services which could be 

treated as a separate, stand-alone section of the business generating its own profits 

and losses. 

210



An Ordinance Regulating Community Standards 

2013-38 

Page 3 

Sexual Activity.  Activities consisting of the following: 

(1) The stimulation, fondling or touching of male or female human genital 

organs or anus;  

(2) The stimulation, fondling or touching of the female breast; or 

(3) Flagellation, torture, fettering, binding or other physical restraint of 

any persons in a sexual relationship. 

 

Sexually Oriented Businesses.  Adult Cabaret/Entertainment Facilities, Adult 

Companionship Establishment, Adult Novelty/Book Stores or Adult Theaters. 

 

Sexually Oriented Business Permit.  As defined in Section II of this Ordinance. 

 

Tattoo Facility.  The geographic location at which an individual does one or more 

of the following for compensation: 

(1) Places an indelible mark upon the body of another individual by the 

insertion of a pigment in or under the skin. 

(2) Places an indelible design upon the body of another individual by 

production of scars. 

(3) The perforation of human tissue other than ear for a nonmedical 

purpose. 

 

Topless.  The exposing of any portion of the human female breast below a 

horizontal line across the top or the areola at its highest point or simulation 

thereof excluding any portion of the cleavage of the human female breast 

exhibited by a dress, blouse, shirt, leotard, bathing suit or outerwear apparel. 

 

Section II Sexually Oriented Businesses. 
A. Location Restrictions of Sexually Oriented Businesses. 

1. Sexually Oriented Businesses are prohibited within one thousand 

(1,000) feet of the following: 

i. A public or private elementary or secondary school. 

ii. A family day care, day care center for children, nursery, or 

preschool. 

iii. A church or other facility or institution used primarily for 

religious purposes. 

iv. A public park or trail system.  

v. A Tattoo Facility. 

vi. Another Sexually Oriented Business 

211



An Ordinance Regulating Community Standards 

2013-38 

Page 4 

 

 

2. Sexually Oriented Businesses are prohibited within five hundred (500) 

feet of a residential zone or any single family or multiple-family 

residential use. 

3. Sexually Oriented Businesses shall only be permitted in the 

Commercial/Industrial Zone (C/I) by right and in the General Business 

Zone (B-2) with Planning Commission Approval, as defined in Land 

Use and Development Ordinance, and shall not be permitted or 

permitted by special exception in any other district.  The table of 

permitted uses within the Land Use Development Ordinance shall be 

updated to reflect the location restrictions contained in this section. 

4. No more than one Sexually Oriented Business shall be permitted 

within one unified development or shopping center. 

5. The location restrictions and requirements contained in this section 

shall not apply to Sexually Oriented Businesses existing within the 

City of Daphne prior to the adoption of this Ordinance or to newly 

annexed properties where Sexually Oriented Businesses were 

operating for a period of 3 months immediately prior to annexation. 

B. Hours of Operation.  No Sexually Oriented Businesses shall be open to do 

business before eight o’clock a.m. (8:00 a.m.), and no Sexually Oriented 

Businesses shall be open to do business after twelve o’clock (12:00) midnight.  

No Sexually Oriented Businesses shall be open to do business on Sunday. 

C. Permitting.  

1. It shall be unlawful to operate a Sexually Oriented Business in the City 

of Daphne without a valid Sexually Oriented Business Permit. 

2. An applicant for a Sexually Oriented Business Permit shall file in 

person with the Department of Community Development a completed 

application made on a form provided by the Department of 

Community Development accompanied by an application fee of 

$50.00. 

3. An application for an Sexually Oriented Business Permit shall contain: 

i. Applicant’s full name and any other names used by the 

applicant in the past five (5) years; 

ii. Written proof of the age of the applicant in the form of a 

driver’s license or other picture identification document issued 

by a governmental agency; 

iii. Current business or mailing address of the applicant. 

212



An Ordinance Regulating Community Standards 

2013-38 

Page 5 

 

 

iv. The proposed name of the proposed Sexually Oriented 

Business; 

v. The proposed location of the proposed Sexually Oriented 

Business; and 

vi. A legal description of the property where the Sexually Oriented 

Business is proposed to be located. 

4. An application containing all items required by this section shall be 

considered complete.  Within thirty (30) days of the submission of a 

completed application, the Department of Community Development 

shall issue a permit unless: 

i. The applicant is a minor; 

ii. The location of the proposed Sexually Oriented Business is not 

in compliance with the locational requirement of this 

ordinance; or 

iii. The application fee required by the Department of Community 

Development has not been paid. 

5. The Sexually Oriented Business Permit shall not, and does not, relieve 

the applicant of other relevant licensing or permitting requirements. 

D. Alcoholic Beverages. 

1. An establishment dealing in alcoholic beverages shall not offer for sale 

or rental books, magazines, periodicals or other printed matter, or 

photographs, films, motion pictures, videocassettes, slides, tapes, 

records, compact disks or other form of visual or audio representations 

or instruments, devices, games, costumes, props or paraphernalia 

which are distinguished or characterized by their emphasis on matters 

depicting, describing or relating to Nudity or Sexual Activity. 

2. An establishment dealing in alcoholic beverages shall not show or 

create films, motion pictures, or other photographic reproductions 

which are distinguished or characterized by their emphasis on matters 

depicting, describing or relating to Nudity or Sexual Activity. 

3. An Adult Cabaret/Entertainment Facilities and Adult Companionship 

Establishment shall not deal in alcoholic beverages. 

E. Restrictions on Minors.   

1. A Sexually Oriented Business shall not employ a minor. 

2. A Sexually Oriented Business shall not permit minors within its 

commercial establishment unless the Sexually Oriented Business  

213



An Ordinance Regulating Community Standards 

2013-38 

Page 6 

 

obtains the prior written informed consent of the parent or legal guardian 

of the minor.  The parent or legal guardian of the minor shall execute the 

written informed consent required under this subsection in the presence of 

an employee or agent of that Sexually Oriented Business.  

 

Section III Tattoo Facilities. 
(1) Location Restrictions of Tattoo Facilities.   

a. Tattoo Facilities are prohibited within five hundred (500) feet of the 

following: 

i. A public or private elementary or secondary school. 

ii. A family day care, day care center for children, nursery, or 

preschool. 

iii. A church or other facility or institution used primarily for 

religious purposes not located in a commercial building or 

facility. 

iv. A public park or trail system.  

v. A Sexually Oriented Business. 

vi. Another Tattoo Facility. 

b. Tattoo Facilities are prohibited within two hundred and fifty (250) feet 

of a residential zone or any single family or multiple-family residential 

use. 

c. Tattoo Facilities shall only be permitted in the General Business Zone 

(B-2) by right and in the Local Business Zone (B-1) with Planning 

Commission Approval, as defined in Land Use and Development 

Ordinance.  The table of permitted uses within the Land Use 

Development Ordinance shall be updated to reflect the location 

restrictions contained in this section. 

d. No more than two Tattoo Facilities shall be permitted within one 

unified development or shopping center. 

e. The location restrictions and requirements contained in this section 

shall not apply to Tattoo Facilities existing within the City of Daphne 

prior to the adoption of this Ordinance or to newly annexed properties 

where Sexually Oriented Businesses were operating for a period of 3 

months immediately prior to annexation. 

(2) Hours of Operation.  No Tattoo Facilities shall be open to do business 

before eight o’clock a.m. (8:00a.m.), and no Tattoo Facilities shall be open to do 

business after twelve o’clock (12:00) midnight.  

214



An Ordinance Regulating Community Standards 

2013-38 

Page 7 

 

 

(3) Alcoholic Beverages.  A Tattoo Facility shall not deal in alcoholic 

beverages. 

Section IV Miscellaneous. 

(1) Distance Measurement.  The distances provided in this Ordianace shall be 

measured by following a straight line, without regard to intervening buildings, 

from the nearest point of the property parcel upon which the proposed use is to be 

located, to the nearest point of the parcel of property or the land use district 

boundary line from which the proposed land use is to be separated. 

(2) City or State Regulation.  Nothing in this Ordinance is intended to 

authorize, legalize or permit the establishment, operation or maintenance of any 

business, building or use which violates any city regulation or statute of the State 

of Alabama. 

(3) Penalty.  Any person found guilty of violating any provision of this 

Ordinance shall be punished by a fine of not less than fifty dollars ($50.00) nor 

more than the maximum amount permitted under state law per day a violation has 

occurred, or by imprisonment for a period not exceeding six (6) months, or both, 

in the discretion of the municipal judge.  Any violation of this section shall be a 

basis for suspension or revocation of any permits or licenses granted to the person 

found in violation of this section.    

(4) Severability.  The provisions of this Ordinance are severable.  If any 

provision, section, paragraph, sentence or part thereof shall be held to be 

unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect or impair the remainder 

of this Ordinance, it being the legislative intent to ordain and enact each 

provision, section, paragraph, sentence and part thereof separately and 

independently of each other.   

(5) Headings.  All headings contained in this Ordinance are for reference only 

and shall no limit, modify or affect he meaning or interpretation of this Ordinance 

in any matter. 

(6) Repealer. This Ordinance shall lift the moratorium placed on the 

“establishment of adult entertainment stores and tattoo parlors in the City of 

Daphne” enacted on February 4, 2013.   

(7) Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and 

after the date of its approval by the City Council of the City of Daphne and 

publication as required by law.   

 

215



An Ordinance Regulating Community Standards 

2013-38 

Page 8 

 

 

 ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA ON THIS THE _____ DAY OF 

__________________, 2013. 

 

 

CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

 

 

_______________________________                                               

      DANE HAYGOOD, MAYOR 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________________                                                                       

REBECCA A. HAYES, CITY CLERK 

   

 

 
 

 

216



ORDINANCE NO. 2013 – 39 

 

 

Ordinance to Rezone Property Located Southwest of the Intersection of Pollard 

Road and County Road 64 

John & Deborah Kim 
 

 WHEREAS, the owners of certain real property within the City of Daphne, Alabama, have 

requested that said property be rezoned from R-2, Medium Density Single Family Residential District to 

B-3, Professional Business District, said property is located Southwest of the intersection of Pollard Road 

and County Road 64 being more particularly described as follows:  

 

Legal Description: 

 
COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 1 OF THE RESUBDIVISION OF 

LOTS 1, 2, AND 3 AUDUBON PARK SUBDIVISION AS RECORDED ON SLIDE NO. 2040-B IN 

THE OFFICE OF THE JUDGE OF PROBATE OF BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA; THENCE 

RUN NORTH 00-DEGREES 30-MINUTES 41-SECONDS EAST ALONG THE WEST LINE OF 

SAID LOT 1 AND THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF POLLARD ROAD (80' RIGHT-OF-

WAY) A DISTANCE OF 221.48 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 89-DEGREES 29-MINUTES 37-

SECONDS WEST, 79.86 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 

POLLARD ROAD; SAID POINT ALSO BEING THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE 

PROPERTY HEREIN DESCRIBED; THENCE CONTINUE NORTH 89-DEGREES 29-MINUTES 

37-SECONDS WEST, 110.42 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 00-DEGREES 31-MINUTES 33-

SECONDS EAST, 180.12 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 

COUNTY ROAD NO. 64 (80' RIGHT-OF-WAY); THENCE RUN NORTH 89-DEGREES 36-

MINUTES 21-SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE A DISTANCE 

OF 110.44 FEET TO THE INTERSECTION OF THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 

POLLARD ROAD; THENCE RUN SOUTH 00-DEGREES 31-MINUTES 36-SECONDS WEST 

ALONG SAID WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE A DISTANCE OF 181.85 FEET TO THE POINT 

OF BEGINNING CONTAINING 0.46 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne on June 11, 2013 has considered said 

request and set forth an unanimous unfavorable recommendation to the City Council of the City of Daphne 

that said property  be rezoned; and 

 

 WHEREAS, after proper publication, a public hearing was held by the City Council on Monday, 

July 15, 2013 concerning the requested rezoning. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, that said property described above is hereby rezoned from R-2, Medium Density 

Single Family Residential District to B-3, Professional Business District, and that the zoning ordinance and 

zoning map be amended to reflect the said zoning change. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, 

THIS                   , day of                        2013. 

         

 

                    _______________________ 

        Dane Haygood,  

Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 

___________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, 

City Clerk 

217



218



219



ORDINANCE NO. 2013 – 40 

 

 

Ordinance to Rezone Property Northwest of the Intersection of TimberCreek 

Subdivision and Interstate 10 

Interstate-Baldwin Investment, LLC 
 

 WHEREAS, the owners of certain real property within the City of Daphne, Alabama, have 

requested that said property be rezoned from B-2, General Business District to R-6 (G), Garden or Patio 

Home District, said property is located Northwest of the intersection of TimberCreek Subdivision and 

Interstate 10 being more particularly described as follows:  

 

Legal Description: 

 
BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 28, T4S R2E , BALDWIN COUNTY, 

ALABAMA, THENCE RUN N 00° 02' 26" W 1323.41 FEET TO A POINT ON A WESTWARD 

PROJECTION OF THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF WILSON HEIGHTS SUBDIVISION, FIRST UNIT 

AS PER PLAT RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 5, PAGE 123 OF THE PROBATE COURT RECORDS OF 

BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA; THENCE RUN S 89° 09' 40" E ALONG SAID PROJECTION LINE 

AND SAID SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF WILSON HEIGHTS SUBDIVISION, FIRST UNIT, AND 

ALONG THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF WILSON HEIGHTS SUBDIVISION, THIRD UNIT, AS PER 

PLAT RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 5, PAGE 184 OF SAID PROBATE COURT RECORDS OF BALDWIN 

COUNTY, ALABAMA, A DISTANCE OF 1527.71 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF 

TIMBERCREEK, PHASE NINE (AMENDED PLAT), AS PER PLAT RECORDED ON SLIDE NO. 2056-D 

OF SAID PROBATE COURT RECORDS OF BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA; THENCE RUN S 20° 51' 

15" W ALONG THE WESTERN BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID TIMBERCREEK, PHASE NINE (AMENDED 

PLAT) A DISTANCE OF 296.10 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST TERMINUS OF PERSIMMON 

DRIVE; THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID WESTERN BOUNDARY LINE OF TIMBERCREEK, PHASE 

NINE (AMENDED PLAT) AND ALONG SAID WEST TERMINUS OF PERSIMMON DRIVE RUN S 26° 

13' 34" W  60.00 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTHERN RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF SAID 

PERSIMMON DRIVE, THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID WESTERN BOUNDARY LINE OF 

TIMBERCREEK, PHASE NINE (AMENDED PLAT) AND ALONG SAID SOUTHERN RIGHT OF WAY LINE 

OF PERSIMMON DRIVE, RUN S 63° 46' 26" E 20.33 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE CONTINUING 

ALONG SAID WESTERN BOUNDARY LINE OF TIMBERCREEK, PHASE NINE (AMENDED PLAT) RUN 

AS FOLLOWS: S 26° 13' 34" W 150.00 FEET, S 63° 46' 26" E 135.23 FEET, S 12° 39' 

08" W 123.51 FEET, S 23° 27' 51" E 138.95 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE CONTINUING 

ALONG SAID WESTERN BOUNDARY LINE OF TIMBERCREEK, PHASE NINE ( AMENDED PLAT) AND 

ALONG THE WEST TERMINUS OF PINE RUN, RUN S 15° 43' 34 W 250.00 FEET TO A POINT 

ON THE SOUTHERN RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF SAID PINE RUN;  THENCE CONTINUING ALONG 

SAID WESTERN BOUNDARY LINE OF TIMBERCREEK, PHASE NINE (AMENDED PLAT) AND ALONG 

SAID SOUTHERN RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF PINE RUN, RUN S 74° 16' 26" E 41.00 FEET TO A 

POINT ; THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID WESTERN BOUNDARY LINE OF TIMBERCREEK, PHASE 

NINE (AMENDED PLAT) RUN S 15° 43' 34" W 222.16 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF 

SAID TIMBERCREEK, PHASE NINE (AMENDED PLAT); THENCE ALONG THE SOUTHERN BOUNDARY 

LINE OF SAID TIMBERCREEK, PHASE NINE (AMENDED PLAT) RUN AS FOLLOWS: S 78° 27' 

58" E 130.46 FEET, S 83° 59' 10" E 167.69 FEET, S 58° 15' 04" E 308.72 FEET TO A 

POINT; THENCE RUN S 08° 26' 50" E 340.74 FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTH RIGHT OF 

WAY LINE OF INTERSTATE HIGHWAY NO. 10; THENCE RUN S 81° 33' 10" W ALONG SAID 

NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF INTERSTATE HIGHWAY NO. 10, A DISTANCE OF 240.59 FEET 

TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF AN EXISTING SANITARY SEWER PUMP STATION SITE; THENCE 

RUN N 08° 26' 50" W ALONG THE EAST BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID SANITARY SEWER PUMP 

STATION SITE, A DISTANCE OF 30.00 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SANITARY 

SEWER PUMP STATION SITE; THENCE RUN S 81° 33' 10" W ALONG THE NORTH BOUNDARY 

LINE OF SAID SANITARY SEWER PUMP STATION SITE, A DISTANCE OF 40.00 FEET TO THE  

NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SANITARY SEWER PUMP STATION SITE; THENCE RUN S 08° 26' 

50" E ALONG THE WEST BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID SANITARY SEWER PUMP STATION SITE, A 

DISTANCE OF 30.00 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SANITARY SEWER PUMP 

STATION SITE, SAID POINT BEING ON THE AFOREMENTIONED NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF 

INTERSTATE HIGHWAY NO. 10; THENCE RUN S 81° 33' 10" W ALONG SAID NORTH RIGHT OF 

WAY LINE OF INTERSTATE HIGHWAY NO. 10, A DISTANCE OF 1769.26 FEET TO A POINT;  

 

 

 
220



ORDINANCE 2013-40                 REZONE INTERSTATE-BALDWIN, LLC                PAGE   2 
 

 

THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF INTERSTATE HIGHWAY NO.10 

RUN S 81° 31' 27" W 10.41 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF AN EXISTING SANITARY 

SEWER PUMP STATION SITE; THENCE RUN N 08° 28' 33" W ALONG THE EAST BOUNDARY LINE 

OF SAID SANITARY SEWER PUMP STATION SITE, A DISTANCE OF 30.00 FEET TO THE 

NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SANITARY SEWER PUMP STATION SITE; THENCE RUN S 81° 31' 

27" W ALONG THE NORTH BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID SANITARY SEWER PUMP STATION SITE, A 

DISTANCE OF 40.00 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SANITARY SEWER PUMP 

STATION SITE; THENCE RUN S 08° 28' 33" E ALONG THE WEST BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID 

SANITARY SEWER PUMP STATION SITE, A DISTANCE OF 30.00 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST 

CORNER OF SAID SANITARY SEWER PUMP STATION SITE, SAID POINT BEING ON THE 

AFOREMENTIONED  NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF INTERSTATE HIGHWAY NO. 10, THENCE RUN 

S 81° 31' 27" W ALONG SAID NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF INTERSTATE HIGHWAY NO. 10, 

A DISTANCE OF 798.04 FEET TO A POINT ON THE CENTERLINE OF A NATURAL DRAIN; 

THENCE ALONG SAID CENTERLINE OF A NATURAL DRAIN, RUN AS FOLLOWS: N 27° 11' 27" W 

182.77 FEET, N 41° 34' 42" W 146.10 FEET, N 57° 14' 28" W 276.05 FEET, N 30° 58' 

45" W 144.94 FEET, N 48° 54' 33" W 263.34 FEET, N 48° 17' 00" W 273.03 FEET TO A 

POINT ON THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF SENIOR DOUGLAS SUBDIVISION, AS PER PLAT 

RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 8, PAGE 116 OF THE AFOREMENTIONED PROBATE COURT RECORDS OF  

BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA; THENCE RUN N 89° 43' 17" E 419.65 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST 

CORNER OF SAID SENIOR DOUGLAS SUBDIVISION; THENCE RUN N89° 25' 13" E 1321.85 

FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. CONTAINING 97.4945 ACRES. 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne on June 11, 2013 has considered said 

request and set forth an unanimous favorable recommendation to the City Council of the City of Daphne 

that said property  be rezoned; and 

 

 WHEREAS, after proper publication, a public hearing was held by the City Council on Monday, 

July 15, 2013 concerning the requested rezoning. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, that said property described above is hereby rezoned from B-2, General Business 

District to R-6 (G), Garden or Patio Home District, and that the zoning ordinance and zoning map be 

amended to reflect the said zoning change. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, 

THIS                   , day of                        2013. 

         

 

                    _______________________ 

        Dane Haygood,  

Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 

___________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, 

City Clerk 

221



222



223



224



ORDINANCE 2013-41  
 

Resurfacing: Bay View Drive and Ridgewood Drive from Rolling Hill Drive 
to Dunbar Loop (Lake Forest Phase III) 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2012-58 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2013 
Budget on October 1, 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has entered into an agreement with ALDOT for an ATRIP 
grant for the resurfacing of Bay View Drive and Ridgewood Drive from Rolling Hill 
Drive to Dunbar Loop with an 80/20 cost share ratio. 
   
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds in the amount of $ 500,147 from the General Fund are 
appropriated to be transferred to Capital Reserve and made a part of the Fiscal 
Year 2013 budget for the City’s 20% match for the project herein described.   
 

 
Total Cost 

80% 
Reimbursement 

20% Cost to 
City 

Construction (H.O. Weaver & Sons): $2,181,160.61  $1,744,928.49  $436,232.12  

Construction Engineering & 
Inspection: $274,574.00  $219,659.20  $54,914.80  

Material Testing: $45,000.00  $36,000.00  $9,000.00  

 
$2,500,734.61  $2,000,587.69  $500,146.92  

 
FURTHERMORE, the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute any and all 
documents required in order for the City of Daphne to participate in such project. 

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2013. 
 
   
      
                                                                      ________________________________ 
      Dane Haygood, Mayor 
                           

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

225



ORDINANCE 2013-42 
 

U.S. 98 (SR42) Service Road Extension in Baldwin County Agreement for 
Preliminary Engineering, ROW Acquisition, Utilities and Construction 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2012-58 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2013 Budget on 
October 1, 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget, the City Council 
has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved and made 
a part of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City desires to cooperate with TWOSTEP Partners, LLC and Alabama 
Department of Transportation (ALDOT) in a construction agreement for the extension of the 
Service Road on U.S. 98 (SR42) in Daphne with each party sharing 33.33% of the project 
cost , and  
 
WHEREAS, per the agreement the City will invoice TWOSTEP and ALDOT as work 
progresses for their 33.33% portion of their cost share ratio. 
 
 WHEREAS, the total project cost is estimated to be $726,000 with the City’s share being 
$242,000, and 
  
WHEREAS, preliminary engineering will be performed by or for the City at NO cost to 
TWOSTEP Partners, LLC but all construction, engineering, and inspection will considered 
as part of the project cost to be shared. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that: 
1)  Funds in the amount of $319,578 ($242,000 + Preliminary Engineering -  $77,578.00) 
from the General Fund are appropriated to be transferred to Capital Reserve and made a 
part of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget for the City’s 33.33% match for the U.S. 98 Service 
Road Extension project,  and        
2)  Volkert Engineering is hereby selected to provide the engineering services for the 
project, and 
3) the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute any and all documents required in order for 
the City of Daphne to participate in such project. 

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2013. 
 
   
      
                                                                      ________________________________ 
      Dane Haygood, Mayor 
 ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

226



CITY OF DAPHNE 

ORDINANCE NO. 2013-43 

_________________________________________________________________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO ADOPT A PRIVATELY-OWNED FIREARMS & AMMUNITION 

IN THE WORKPLACE POLICY IN CHAPTER 1 OF THE 

CITY’S EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 

_________________________________________________________________ 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne, after due consideration believes 

that it is necessary to adopt a new policy in Chapter 1 of the City of Daphne Employee 

Handbook to comply with Alabama's Guns in the Parking Lot Act which takes effect on August 

1, 2013, in order to benefit the health, safety, and welfare of its employees as well as permit 

employees to enjoy the rights protected by the new state law; 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION I: ADOPTION OF NEW POLICY: 

 

 That the following new policy be made part of Chapter 1 of the City of Daphne 

Employee Handbook: 

 

1.2.6 Privately-Owned Firearms & Ammunition in the Workplace 

For purposes of this policy, the term “firearm” has the same meaning as the term defined 

in Alabama Code §13A-8-1(4), and the term “ammunition” includes fixed cartridge 

ammunition, shotgun shells, individual components of fixed cartridge ammunition, 

projectiles for muzzle-loading firearms, and any propellant used in firearms or 

ammunition.  For purposes of this policy, a “pistol” is a firearm with a barrel of less than 

12 inches in length, and a “long gun” is a firearm with a barrel of 12 or more inches in 

length (e.g., a shotgun or rifle). 

 

The City prohibits all employees, including those with a concealed weapons permit, from 

carrying privately-owned firearms or ammunition while on the city’s property or while 

engaged in work duties. 

 

The City does not restrict the transportation or storage of a lawfully possessed, privately-

owned firearm or ammunition in an employee’s privately-owned motor vehicle while it is 

parked or operated in a City parking area, if all of the following conditions are present. 

 

The employee’s ownership of the firearm or ammunition must not be prohibited by state 

or federal law. 

 

If an employee has a valid concealed weapons permit, the employee may store or keep a 

lawfully possessed, privately-owned pistol or a long gun and/or ammunition in his or her 

227



personal vehicle, if the vehicle is operated or parked on City parking area where it is 

otherwise permitted to be. 

 

If an employee does not have a concealed weapons permit, but does possess a valid 

Alabama hunting license, the employee may, during hunting season, store or keep a 

lawfully possessed, privately-owned unloaded long gun (not a pistol) which is legal for 

hunting and/or ammunition in his or her personal vehicle, if the vehicle is operated or 

parked on City parking area where it is otherwise permitted to be, and the employee must 

have never been convicted of a crime of violence, has no documented prior workplace 

incidents involving the threat of physical injury or which resulted in physical injury, and 

is not subject to a domestic violence court order. 

 

If the vehicle is attended by the employee, the firearm or ammunition must be kept from 

ordinary observation within the vehicle, or, if the vehicle is unattended, the firearm or 

ammunition must be kept from ordinary observation and locked within the interior of the 

vehicle, or in a compartment or container within the interior of the vehicle or securely 

affixed to the vehicle. 

 

If the City believes its employee presents a risk of harm to himself or others, the City 

may ask the employee whether he has a firearm in his vehicle. If the answer is yes, the 

City may inquire to ensure the employee is in compliance with the above provisions. If 

the employee is not in compliance, the City at its discretion may discipline the employee 

up to an including separation from employment. 

 

SECTION II: REPEALER 

That any Ordinance, or parts thereof, heretofore adopted by the City Council of Daphne, 

Alabama, which is in conflict with this Ordinance be and is hereby repealed to the extent of such 

conflict. 

 

SECTION III: SEVERABILITY 

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this ordinance is for any reason 

held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be 

deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision and such holding shall not affect the 

validity of the remaining portions hereof. 

 

SECTION IV: EFFECTIVE DATE.  

This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its approval by the 

City Council of the City of Daphne and publication as required by law, or August 1, 2013, which 

date is later in time. 

 

 ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS ____  DAY OF _____, 2013. 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

228



  

DANE HAYGOOD 

MAYOR 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

___________________________________ 

REBECCA A. HAYES 

CITY CLERK 

 

 

229



ORDINANCE 2013-44 
S.E.E.D.S. (Supporting Educational Enrichment in Daphne’s Schools) -  FY 

13 APPROPRIATION 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2012-58 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2013 
Budget on October 1, 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget, the City 
Council has determined that a certain appropriation is required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne recognizes S.E.E.D.S and the importance of the 
organizations to the students and citizens of the City of Daphne, and 
 
WHEREAS,  S.E.E.D.S. mission is to promote a lifelong love of learning among 
the children of Daphne by providing enrichment opportunities at school and in the 
community and by advocating for educational improvements and innovation, and 
 
WHEREAS,  S.E.E.D.S. wants to ensure that Daphne’s schools offer world-class 
learning opportunities that give our students the competitive edge they need for 
entering college and the 21st century workplace, and 
 
WHEREAS, S.E.E.D.S has requested $100,000 for the following projects: 
Enrichment of the K-12 learning experiences through activities including but not 
limited to: establishment of foreign language studies for grades K-6, Hobson’s 
Naviance College and Career-readiness platform, and 135 IPads for Grades K-6. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, that $100,000 from the General Fund is hereby appropriated  
to S.E.E.D.S for  enrichment projects to include:  

 $34,000 - establishment of foreign language studies for grades K-6 

 $13,000 -  Hobson’s Naviance College and Career-readiness platform  

 $52,700 - 135 IPads for Grades K-6   
and the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute any and all documents required in 
order for the City of Daphne to participate in the S.E.E.D.S. agreement. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2013. 
         
 
 
                                                                      ________________________________ 
      Dane Haygood, Mayor    
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

230



 1 

STATE OF ALABAMA ) 
BALDWIN COUNTY ) 
CITY OF DAPHNE  ) 
 

MUNICIPAL AGENCY FUNDING CONTRACT 
 
THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into on this the ____ day of ______, 2013, by 
and between the CITY OF DAPHNE, a Municipal Corporation, of the State of Alabama 
(hereinafter sometimes referred to as "City" or "the City"), and the SUPPORTING 
EDUCATIONAL ENRICHMENT IN DAPHNE’S SCHOOLS EDUCATION 
FOUNDATION- (SEEDS), (hereinafter sometimes referred to as the “Agency"): 
 
 
W-I-T-N-E-S-S-E-T-H 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency has requested that the City of Daphne appropriate funds 
for its use for the benefit, either directly or indirectly, of the residents of the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne desires to promote the health, 
safety, and welfare of the citizens of the City of Daphne; and 
 
 THEREFORE, in consideration of the benefits moving each to the other, it is 
mutually agreed by and between the City and the Agency as follows: 
 
I. AUTHORITY 
 
 Agency represents and warrants to City that it is authorized by law to receive 
funding from City and that such funding will not be in violation of Article IV, Section 94, 
or amendments thereto, of the Constitution of Alabama, 1901, or any other 
constitutional or statutory provision. 
 
 If Agency has specific statutory authority to receive funding from City or statutory 
authority from the City to perform the services or otherwise contract for the same, 
please specify: 
___________________________________________________________ 
___________________________________________________________ 
 
Agency further warrants that funding from the City will only be used to perform public 
services and/or acts which the City is otherwise authorized to perform or to fund itself. 
 
II. SERVICES 
 
 The Agency shall provide the following public services within the Corporate 
Limits of the City of Daphne: 
Enrichment of the K-12 learning experiences through activities including but not limited 
to: establishment of foreign language studies for grades K-6 - $34,300, Hobson’s 
Naviance College and Career-readiness platform - $13,000, and 135 IPads for Grades 
K-6  - $52,700. 

231



 2 

 
 If Agency provides public services both inside and outside the Corporate Limits 
of the City, then, if requested by the City or its representative, it shall submit an audit 
report demonstrating that services by the Agency, at least to the extent of the funding 
herein, shall be and were provided within the Corporate Limits of the City, including an 
identification of the number of City residents served by said agency. 
 
III.  APPROPRIATION 
 
 The City shall appropriate funds to the Agency in the following amount for the 
2013 fiscal year: $100,000 (One Hundred Thousand Dollars), said amount to be paid 
pursuant to a method determined by the Finance Director of the City.  The Finance 
Director of the City or his/her designee shall be the representative of the City for the 
administration and implementation of the provisions hereof on behalf of the City. 
 
IV.  SEPARATE AGREEMENTS 
 
 The City shall be under no obligation to the Agency except to the extent set out 
expressly in this Agreement.  Provided, however, in the event there is a separate valid 
written agreement between the City and Agency, then this Funding Agreement is 
supplemental thereto and in the event of a conflict the terms of the latest written 
agreement shall prevail. 
 
V.  TERM; TERMINATION 
 
 This Agreement shall take effect upon the date hereof and shall not be 
terminated by either party until the obligations set forth in Sections 2 and 3 herein are 
performed in full. 
 
 
VI.  NON-DISCRIMINATION AND COMPLIANCE 
 
 This Agency hereby covenants and agrees that in performing its responsibilities 
and obligations hereunder, the Agency, its officers, agents and employees will not, on 
the grounds of race, color, sex, religion, national origin, or disability, discriminate or 
permit discrimination against any person or group of persons, in any manner.  The 
Agency further agrees to comply with all applicable state and federal ordinances and 
regulations, including but not limited to the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the Americans 
with Disabilities Act, the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and any regulations promulgated 
thereunder.  The Agency further agrees to appoint an ADA coordinator.  Said 
coordinator will be responsible for ensuring that the Agency is in compliance with the 
Americans with Disabilities Act and will advise the City of Daphne ADA Coordinator for 
services and programs as to the Agency's state of compliance with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act. 
 
VII.  INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
 
 It is agreed between the City and the Agency that the Agency is an independent 

232



 3 

contractor.  Neither the City nor its officers, agents or employees shall be liable for 
damages, claims, actions, or causes of action, brought against the Agency, for the 
activities of the Agency. 
 
 Notwithstanding any of the provisions of this Agreement, it is agreed that the City 
has no financial interest in the business of Agency, and shall not be liable for any debts 
or obligations incurred by Agency, nor shall the City be deemed or construed to be 
partner, joint adventurer or otherwise interested party in the assets of Agency, or profits 
earned or derived by Agency, nor shall Agency at any time or times use the name or 
credit of the City in purchasing or attempting to purchase any equipment, supplies, or 
other thing or things whatsoever. 
 
 Agency in the performance of its operations and obligations hereunder shall not 
be deemed to be the agent of the City but shall be deemed to be an independent 
contractor in every respect and shall take all steps at its own expense as City may from 
time to time request to indicate that it is an independent contractor.  City does not and 
will not assume any responsibility for the means by which or manner in which services 
by Agency, provided for herein, are performed, but on the contrary, Agency shall be 
wholly responsible therefore. 
 
VIII.  INDEMNITY 
 
 The Agency hereby covenants with the City that it will indemnify and hold the City 
and its officers, agents and employees harmless for or on account of any claim, suit, 
cause of action or judgment arising out of or in any manner associated with this 
Agreement or services provided or performed by Agency or any of its officers, agents or 
employees. 
 
IX.  NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES 
 
 It is the intent of the parties to this Agreement that they be the only parties to the 
Agreement and to expressly exclude third party beneficiaries; no person not a party to 
the Agreement may claim benefits under the Agreement. 
 
X.  SERVICE AREA 
 
 Agency shall submit, if requested by the City, to the Office of the Finance 
Director of the City, a written monthly report of the Agency's activities and expenditures, 
including, but not limited to, information demonstrating that services by the Agency 
within the Corporate Limits of the City at least equal, if not exceed, the funding from the 
City for that month.  Should the City determine at any time during the term of this 
Contract that Agency is not providing services within the City Corporate Limits at least 
equal to the funding herein, then the City may terminate this Agreement immediately.  
Upon such termination, Agency may be, at the sole discretion of the City, required to 
refund any funds deemed by the City not to have been appropriately expended within 
the Corporate Limits. 
 
 

233



 4 

XI.  BOOKS AND RECORDS/REPORTS 
 
 Agency shall, at the request of the City, provide, at a time and place designated 
by the City, all books, records, accounts, statements and other documents as needed 
by the City to enable it to conduct a financial and/or operational review or audit of 
agency operations and/or finances.  If Agency refuses to honor the City's request within 
ten (30) days, it shall refund to the City all funds appropriated to it during the term of the 
contract.  All reports, evaluations and audits required shall be provided by Agency to 
any person appointed by the City or the Mayor to the Agency's governing body. 
 
XII.  AUDIT 
 
  
 The City may require appropriate documentation from the Board to document the 
disbursement and use of the funding provided herein.  The City may have the Board 
records provided in accordance herewith audited by an independent CPA firm. 
 A copy of the audited financial statements will be mailed to the City's Finance Director 
as soon as possible after the statements are issued. 
 
XIII.  OPEN MEETING, PUBLIC RECORDS, COMPETITIVE BIDS 
AND OTHER APPLICABLE LAWS 
 
 A. As Agency is receiving public funds and/or other things of public value, 
including in-kind services, use of City employees and/or equipment from the City 
pursuant to this agreement, Agency agrees as follows: 
 
 1. To the same and like extent as is applicable to the City of Daphne, all 
meetings of the governing or controlling body of the Agency or any committee or 
subcommittee thereof shall be open to the public when any issue or matter involving or 
relating directly or indirectly to this Agreement is discussed or considered and when 
there is any discussion or consideration of the use of public funds or things of value 
provided to the Agency by or through the City. 
 
 2. Public Records.  To the same and like extent as is applicable to the City of 
Daphne pursuant to State law, all records, documents, letters, minutes, memoranda, 
etc. of the Agency shall be open to public inspection and copying when the same 
pertain to any issue or matter involving or relating directly or indirectly to the 
performance by Agency of this Agreement or the use of public funds or other things of 
value provided to the Agency by or through the City. 
 
 3. Expenditure of Public Funds.  To the same and like extent as is applicable 
to the City pursuant to State law, all expenditures or disbursements of funds received by 
the Agency, whether directly or indirectly, from the City shall be subject to competitive 
bidding. 
 
 
 
 

234



 5 

XIV.  SEVERABILITY 
 
 It is expressly understood and agreed by and between the parties hereto that in 
the event any covenant, condition or provision herein contained is held to be invalid by 
any court of competent jurisdiction, or otherwise appears to both parties to be invalid, 
the invalidity of any such covenant, condition, or provision herein contained, shall not 
affect other remaining and valid covenants or conditions herein unless such invalidity 
renders performance of the essential elements of the contract impossible. 
 
XV.  MISCELLANEOUS CLAUSES 
 
 Capacity: Each Party to this Agreement represents and warrants to the other as 
follows: 
 
 A. That it is an individual of the age of majority or otherwise a legal entity duly 
organized and in good standing pursuant to all applicable laws, rules and regulations. 
 
 B. That each has full power and capacity to enter into this Agreement, to 
perform and to conclude the same including the capacity, to the extent applicable, to 
grant, convey and/or transfer, areas, assets, facilities, properties, (both real and 
personal), permits, consents and authorizations and/or the full power and right to 
acquire and accept the same. 
 
 C. That to the extent required, each Party has obtained the necessary 
approval of its governing body or board and a resolution or other binding act has been 
duly and properly enacted by such governing body or board authorizing this Agreement 
and said approval has been reduced to writing and certified or attested by the 
appropriate official of the Party. 
 
 D. That each Party has duly authorized and empowered a representative to 
execute this Agreement on their respective behalf and the execution of the Agreement 
by such representative fully and completely binds the Party to the terms and conditions 
hereof. 
 
 E. That absent fraud, the execution of this Agreement by a representative of 
the party shall constitute a certification that all such authorization for execution exists 
and has been performed and the other Party shall be entitled to rely upon the same.  To 
the extent a Party is a partnership, limited liability company or joint venture, the 
execution of this Agreement by any member thereof shall bind the Party and to the 
extent that the execution of Agreement is limited to a manager, managing partner or 
specific member then the person so executing this Agreement is duly authorized to act 
in such capacity for the Party. 
 
 F. That each party represents and warrants to the other that there is no 
litigation, claim, or administrative action threatened or pending or other proceedings to 
its knowledge against it which would have an adverse impact upon this transaction or 
upon either's ability to conclude the transaction or perform pursuant to the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement. 

235



 6 

 
 G. That each party has obtained any and all required permits, approvals 
and/or authorizations from third parties to enable it to fully perform pursuant to the terms 
and conditions of this Agreement. 
 
 Final Integration: This Agreement together with any amendments, constitutes 
the entire agreement of the parties, as a complete and final integration thereof with 
respect to its subject matter.  In the event of a direct conflict between the provisions 
hereof and any prior agreement or amendment, the latter shall supersede the former.  
All written or oral understandings and agreements heretofore had between and among 
the parties are merged into this Agreement, which alone fully and completely expresses 
their understandings.  No representation, warranty or covenant made by any party 
which is not contained in this Agreement or expressly referred to herein has been relied 
on by any party in entering into this Agreement. 
 
 Force Majeure: Neither party to this Agreement shall hold the other party 
responsible for damages or delay in performance caused by acts of God, strikes, 
lockouts or other circumstances beyond the reasonable control of the other or the other 
party's employees agents or contractors. 
 
 Amendment in Writing: This Agreement may not be amended, modified, 
altered, changed, terminated or waived in any respect whatsoever, except by a further 
agreement in writing, properly executed by all of the parties. 
 
 Binding Effect: This Agreement shall bind the parties and their respective 
personal representatives, heirs, next of kin, legatees, distributees, successors, and 
assigns.  If any provision in this Agreement shall be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the 
validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not in any way be 
affected or impaired thereby. 
 
 Captions: The captions of this Agreement are for convenience and reference 
only, are not a part of this Agreement, and in no way define, describe, extend or limit the 
scope or intent of this Agreement. 
 
 Constructions: This Agreement shall be construed in its entirety according to its 
plain meaning and shall not be construed against the party who provided or drafted it. 
 
 Mandatory and Permissive: "Shall", "will", and "agrees" are mandatory, "may" 
is permissive. 
 
 Governing Laws: The laws of the State of Alabama shall govern the validity of 
this Agreement, the construction of its terms, the interpretation of the rights, the duties 
of the parties, the enforcement of its terms, and all other matters relating to this 
Agreement. 
 
 
 
 

236



 7 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of 
the day and date first set forth above. 
 
 
     CITY OF DAPHNE, a Municipal Corporation 
 
     ___________________________ 
     Dane Haygood, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________  
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 
 
 
     SEEDS Education Foundation 
 
     BY:_________________________ 
 
     TITLE:______________________ 
 
     Federal ID#__________________ 
 
WITNESS: 
 
 
____________________________ 
By:_________________________ 

237


	AGENDA  July 15
	ROLL CALL
	Council Meeting Minutes - July 1
	Council Work Session Minutes - July 8
	Council Strategic Plan Minutes
	Public Hearing Info
	Report of Standing Committees
	Finance Minutes
	Backup to Finance Minutes July 15 2013
	Building & Property Minutes July 8 2013
	Ordinance Committee Minutes - July 10
	Report of Special Boards
	DRA Minutes - June 26
	Backup to DRA Minutes June 26 2013
	IDB Minutes - June 24
	Backup to IDB Mintues - June 24 2013
	Planning Commission MInutes
	Public Hearing Set Date Info
	Planning - Sign Committee Meeting Dates
	RECREATION BOARD MINUTES--5-15-13
	Utility Board Minutes
	Report of Officers
	Mayor Report - AGMT with ADOT - Grass Cutting SR 181 I 10 Exchange CMA MB-06
	Resolutions & Ordinances
	2013-38 - RES - ALDOT ATRIP
	2013-39 - RES - Credit Card - Procurement_v2
	2013-31 - ORD - Public Indecency - Final 6-17-13 (2)
	2013-37 - ORD - REZONE - EARTH INC.
	Backup to 2013-37
	2013-38 - ORD - Community Standards - Final (2)
	2013-39 - ORD - REZONE - JOHN & DEBORAH KIM
	Backup to 2013-39 - ORD 
	2013-40 - ORD - REZONE - TIMBERCREEK SUBDIVISION
	Backup to 2013-40 - ORD
	2013-41 - ORD - ATRIP Lake Forest-PH III
	2013-42 - ORD - TwoStep - ALDOT - US98 Service Road Ext-2013
	2013-43 - ORD - Handbook Chap 1 Firearms and Ammunition in the Workplace (draft 7-9-13)
	2013-44 - ORD - SEEDS Ord
	Backup to 2013-44 - SEEDS Agreement

	Permit No: 
	DIVISION: Ninth (9th)
	DISTRICT: Two (2)
	THIS AGREEMENT entered into this the: 2nd
	day of: July
	20: 13
	hereinafter referred to as the STATE and: City of Daphne - thru Public Works
	roadside between 1: Interstate 10 and State Route 181 Exchange - the Northwest,
	roadside between 2: Northeast, Southwest, and Southeast quadrants - from approximate SR181mile 
	roadside between 3: marker 17.04 to approximate SR181 mile marker 16.84 - see attached map
	on Route: SR181/I10
	by means of mowing with a flail or rotary mower and: R.O.W. - Quadrants/Medians
	be conducted when the height of the vegetative cover reaches: Six (6)
	Text3: City of Daphne - Thru Public Works
	Text1: Honorable Dane Hagood, Mayor
	Text2: 
	Telephone Number: 251-621-9000 Ext #1


